RelmR

Consolidated Income Statement

BE-Z-—=F+=-A=+—HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012

FET T

HK$°000 HK$'000

FLEMA Interest income 6 902,246 1,135,362
AMEXH Interest expense 7 (250,253) (323,263)
AR E WA Net interest income 651,993 812,099
BERERZR 2N Net premiums earned 8 476,956 533,536
E bl A Other income 9 297,470 232,471
AZEWA Operating income 1,426,419 1,578,106
RO %25 Net claims written back 8 8,767 6,642
e Net commission expenses 8 (135,890) (162,541)
ZRELH Operating expenses 10 (235,043) (219,267)
RITRERTNZE R AH Operating profit before impairment 1,064,253 1,202,940
ROR(E [E % Write-back of loan impairment allowances 13 3,545 5,680
ZERF Operating profit 1,067,798 1,208,620
KI5 & % A mlE A Share of profit of a joint venture 24 - 2,450
BRFR B A Profit before taxation 1,067,798 1,211,070
I Taxation 14(a) (85,214) (85,524)
REERER Profit for the year 982,584 1,125,546

R 5EF - Profit attributable to:

NN 5 @i Equity holders of the Company 982,404 1,125,393
RIS AR Non-controlling interests 180 153
982,584 1,125,546
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ReEEBER

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE-Z-=5+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2013

2013
FET
HK$'000
REE Al Profit for the year 982,584 1,125,546
Hih £ mEma - Other comprehensive income:
HigAEH X EHR Items that are or may be reclassified
B I E : subsequently to profit or loss:
AR SIS Available-for-sale securities:
— REY (SR), W5 85 — net unrealised (losses)/gains 22 (37,853) 357,875
— HENAFEZED) — fair value changes transferred to
AR income statement on disposal 33 (295,593) (38,230)
— B4 — amortisation 33 34 39
— I — tax effect 33 54,908 (52,748)
BRI A Cash flow hedges:
— RARERH N FEEY — fair value changes transferred to
income statement 33 4,272 5,495
— I — tax effect 33 (704) (907)
HE G SN S5 B 7= A HY Exchange differences on translation
5[?@%@? of foreign operations:
—WEL — subsidiary 3,695 1,015
—4& f/ N — joint venture 33 - 5,276
N A RATEMETES R Share of other comprehensive losses of
a joint venture 33 - (32)
HEAR ARG % B &Y Release of fair value reserve and
NEEEEICEMES translation reserve upon disposal of
investment in a joint venture 33 - (7,733)
AREEEMEE(SH),/ Other comprehensive (I0ss)/income
Wt 2T IN for the year, net of tax (271,241) 270,050
REELH RS S Total comprehensive income
for the year 711,343 1,395,596
N G2 RS Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
RN AR 2R Equity holders of the Company 710,794 1,395,342
R HIAAR AR Non-controlling interests 549 254
711,343 1,395,596
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

F=EB-=F+=A=+—H
as at 31 December 2013

2012
FETT
HK$'000
BrE ASSETS
NeEHRE Cash and short-term funds 17 11,757,533 9,715,544
IVEE | ES VSOl Interest and remittance receivables 18 368,800 469,590
FER™ Assets held for sale 19 129,767 =
TSI A Derivative financial instruments 20 831,426 1,443,013
WHAB A Loan portfolio, net 21 22,268,397 25,895,399
IEAIER Investment securities:
— AR E — available-for-sale 22(a) 3,860,455 5,812,827
— A E5H — held-to-maturity 22(b) 8,560,595 9,237,808
SN mlﬁ Bzi& Prepayments, deposits and
EAh R other assets 25 18,030 39,641
& & 7 7E Fixed assets 26 44,085 29,128
BIRE & Reinsurance assets 29 180,742 222,007
BERBE Total assets 48,019,830 52,864,957
ki LIABILITIES
INEREAIESS Interest payable 27 195,830 235,756
RIfFMRIRN ~ RS FF S R Accounts payable, accrued expenses
H At 5 f51 and other liabilities 28 4,612,260 4,465,116
S5HEERTFEEREDN Liabilities directly associated with
il assets held for sale 19 384 =
TAEEmI A Derivative financial instruments 20 785,458 175,095
L HAFL IO £ (R Current income tax liabilities 14(b) 144,665 101,587
12 JEF I B {5 Deferred income tax liabilities 14(b) 57,156 109,404
IRE& 1 5= Insurance liabilities 29 1,294,712 1,545,863
B AT IS Debt securities issued 30 31,355,185 36,404,627
B RITIRIBIES Mortgage-backed securities issued 31 - 214,672
AR EE Total liabilities 38,445,650 43,252,120
M= EQUITY
W5 H AR A R Capital and reserves attributable to
MhEE the equity holders:
R& 2 Share capital 32 2,000,000 2,000,000
REE /MIJ Retained profits 4,548,760 5,302,410
EURAR S Proposed dividends 16 1,500,000 750,000
Nﬁﬁﬁ%% Contingency reserve 33 1,213,827 977,773
NEEFER Fair value reserve 33 290,605 569,109
X fE Hedging reserve 33 (5,088) (8,656)
SCRGER Translation reserve 33 13,104 9,778
9,561,208 9,600,414
SRR IR R R WA = Non-controlling interests in equity 12,972 12,423
N B Total equity 9,574,180 9,612,837
S E =R Total liabilities and equity 48,019,830 52,864,957
FEERETFT—NFMN AL BRUERBENTT Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 7 April
2014.
MR R Norman T. L. Chan RIBEX Eddie W. M. Yue

BT EFM7TEE  Deputy Chairman and Executive Director #177& % Executive Director

E1152 225 Fish £ N M SRR —3B5 »  The notes on pages 115 to 225 are an integral part of these consolidated
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Statement of Financial Position

F=F-=5+=-A=+—H
as at 31 December 2013
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financial statements.

EBRBIEFERAH

TE-=FFR

2012
FHIT
HK$'000
"= ASSETS
NekEHRE Cash and short-term funds 17 11,755,482 9,588,343
R R B RS C 5k Interest and remittance receivables 18 359,404 460,415
ﬁiéﬁﬁlﬁ Derivative financial instruments 20 831,426 1,443,013
DIRAE B Loan portfolio, net 21 16,942,574 21,943,803
u‘t%&J\ : Investment securities:
— A[EHEE — available-for-sale 22(a) 3,860,455 5,812,827
— HABERH — held-to-maturity 22(0) 8,560,595 9,237,808
(R EPNCIE S Interests in subsidiaries 23 5,294,250 3,943,669
USRI - 2 Kk Prepayments, deposits and
Eﬁﬂﬁ other assets 25 16,808 46,520
EE R~ Fixed assets 26 44,085 29,116
@%Bf i Reinsurance assets 29 181,053 222,372
B BE Total assets 47,846,132 52,727,886
ki LIABILITIES
INERRAIESS Interest payable 27 195,830 235,686
RIAIORIR ~ RS2 Accounts payable, accrued expenses
ik b and other liabilities 28 4,612,728 4,687,729
TAEESmI A Derivative financial instruments 20 785,458 175,095
X EAR A (5 Current income tax liabilities 14(b) 144,665 100,563
185 ZE A5 I 7 {3 Deferred income tax liabilities 14(b) 56,911 109,103
RS AR Insurance liabilities 29 1,297,034 1,548,076
B RITHESFIES Debt securities issued 30 31,355,185 36,404,627
A Total liabilities 38,447,811 43,260,879
& EQUITY
NEFEB AR SRR Capital and reserves attributable to
KhEE : the equity holders:
A& A Share capital 32 2,000,000 2,000,000
RE /rmﬂ Retained profits 4,398,977 5,178,781
PURRR 2 Proposed dividends 16 1,500,000 750,000
XUE % & contingency reserve 33 1,213,827 977,773
N ERER Fair value reserve 33 290,605 569,109
poplizE=s Hedging reserve 33 (5,088) (8,656)
&SIk Total equity 9,398,321 9,467,007
R RN R A Total liabilities and equity 47,846,132 52,727,886
EFRE T —UEM AL AfERENTIT Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 7 April
2014.
HES Norman T. L. Chan RIEX Eddie W. M. Yue
ElFE#FMNTTESE  Deputy Chairman and Executive Director #H772Z % Executive Director

The notes on pages 115 to 225 are an integral part of these consolidated

111



ReEM@E TR
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-ZE-=F+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2013

BRI
Attributable to equity holders
REHRBR
R RE A it Non-
Share Retained Other controlling BE
capital profits* reserves interests
THL TEL T Tt i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
F-E--F-A—H4%% Balance as at 1January 2012 2,000,000 5,523,228 1,031,844 12,169 8,567,241
RER T Profit for the year - 1,125,393 - 153 1,125,546
H e EG - Other comprehensive income:
A E A Available-for-sale securities - - 266,904 - 266,904
i/é‘mw Cash flow hedges 3 - = 4588 - 4,588
BRI AR Exchange differences on
UL%%) tranglation of foreign operations
—MEAR — Subsidiary 33 = = 914 101 1,015
=R \ﬂ — joint venture 3 - - 5276 - 5276
LEARDARE Disposal of investment in
ajoint venture 3 - - (7733 - (7,733
AFELENRLA Total comprehensive income
for the year = 1,125,393 269,949 254 1,395,596

HRERFIRAZFANE  Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
RE 2HH50%5,75% 2 premium earned from retained profits

N fE% to contingency reserve 33 - (266,260) 266,266 - -
B EZREET  Release of contingency
reserve to retained profits 33 - 20,055 (20,055) - -
ERZE—4KRE Dividend paid related to 2011 - (350,000) - - (350,000)
F-5--F Balance as at 31 December 2012
+ZA=t-A4% 2,000,000 6,052,410 1,548,004 12,423 9,612,837
KEE & Profit for the year - 982,404 - 180 982,584
EheElE Other comprehensive income:
At ET A Available-for-sale securities 3 = = (278,504) - (278,504)
AERH A Cash flow hedges 3 - - 3568 - 3568
BEBMSHFER Exchange differences on
LAZH translation of foreign operations
—HEAA — Subsidiary 3 = = 3,326 369 3,695
AEELENREEA Total comprehensive income
for the year - 982,404 (271,610) 549 711,343

HRZEFIRAZFANE  Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
RE4TH50%F 75%%  premium earned from retained profits

R fEE to contingency reserve K] = (259,008) 259,008 - -
BRI ZREZRE%T  Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits 3 - 22,954 (22,954) - -
ERNZE-—FKRE Dividend paid related to 2012 - (750,000) - = (750,000)
F=-g-=% Balance as at 31 December 2013
+ZRA=t—-H4% 2,000,000 6,048,760 1,512,448 12,972 9,574,180
* F=F—=F+=A=1+—8  EMNRBEFF X & As at 31 December 2013, HK$500 million (2012: HK$750 million) and HK$1 billion (2012:
WA T(ZE——4F : 75ZBT) R10ZBT(= nil) were earmarked as proposed ordinary and special dividends respectively from
T——F : k) * HRNERINREBAS KRS retained profits.
B1155 225 TN T HD T WA M SR8 — 24 The notes on pages 115 to 225 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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e
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BE-Z-=F+-A=t+-ALEE

Iy_l @/)ILE%‘%

for the year ended 31 December 2013

2012
TAT

HK$'000

RELSFEINERE Cash flows from operating activities
Z vl Operating profit 1,067,798 1,208,620
FLA T B IE T #F2E Adjustment for:

FE A Interest income (912,339) (1,143,387)

MEZ Interest expense 217,521 262,501

AR B A Dividend income 9 (89,077) (90,135)

18 Depreciation 10 17,763 14,127

B R ITHRSUE AT LE RS Amortisation of discount on

debt securities issued 32,732 60,762

DIFORE R 3% Write-back of loan impairment

allowances 13 (3,545) (5,680)
AR SIS ERE = Amortisation of unrealised loss on
HAE 250 B AR AR B 5 16 00 available-for-sale securities
transferred to held-to-maturity
securities 33 34 39
UEH4% Zm N e 5 Amortisation of premium on
investment securities 10,059 7,985
HEIR R W= E Net gains on disposal of investments 12 (135,737) (90,260)
HEERRNEIE RN Gain on disposal of investment in
a joint venture - (7,137)
SRITAERNFEED Change in fair value of
financial instruments (2,615) (23,558)
MR RN FEEZS Fair value changes of cash flow hedge
A= TR transferred to income statement 33 4,272 5,495
BB Interest received 990,708 1,165,156
ERFLE Interest paid (257,447) (263,989)
ﬂifré%ZI = RARE DA Cash flows from operating activities

ZEWLSHEIAESRE before changes in operating assets

and liabilities 940,127 1,100,539
JREHA B8 = H fa 21 81 Change in time deposits with original

HEBFRE S maturity of more than three months (1,426,893) (8,252,857)
MNUCC RS 5 Change in remittance receivables 21,720 99,644
M ERIN -~ e REAMA=45Z) Change in prepayments, deposits and

other assets 608 (4,722)
RAE Change in loan portfolio 3,630,547 7,246,099
RIASIRIN ~ R & Change in accounts payable,

Hith s A3 accrued expenses and other liabilities 147,709 189,979
RIGAFUEFA D) Change in insurance liabilities, net (209,886) (97,828)
ANTRSL i Z AR Exchange differences (61,129) (7,707)
ZLEMEI® Cash generated from operation 3,042,803 273,147
B F I Taxation paid (41,257) (115,645)

Bl FAEIlEe 2 Net cash generated from
operating activities 3,001,546 157,502
EBRBIFERAT —T—=FFK 113



SAEWMERER Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BREFEDFREAERE

Cash flows from investing activities

2012
THAT

HK$'000

5K & 7E 72 7= Purchase of fixed assets 26 (32,720) (11,982)
W) 35 a] 44 B IE S Purchase of available-for-sale securities ~ 22(a) (5,277,911) (4,161,064)
TEFE A = 2 HAIE 5 Purchase of held-to-maturity securities 22(b) (2,054,866) (1,926,1071)
HEARANT Disposal of a joint venture - 137,394
& K R [B] A i &S UE 55 Proceeds from sale and redemption of
FT{S 310 available-for-sale securities 7,046,328 1,059,051
HE R A £ F| Bk S Proceeds from sale and redemption of
FT 15 3K3m held-to-maturity securities 22(b) 2,761,350 962,170
BRI H EIEAFAR B Dividend received from available-for-sale
securities 111,262 82,313
R E SIS, (BT ) Net cash generated from/(used in)
e A investing activities 2,553,443 (3,858,219)
BMERFGMASTAGRE) Net cash inflows/(outflows) before
N financing 5,554,989 (3,700,717)
RES FTBISRE cash flows from financing activities
KITRSUE PR3 Proceeds from issue of debt securities 30 18,127,508 19,076,997
T [E B AT SIS Redemption of debt securities issued 30 (21,984,670)  (23,661,825)
B AITIRIBIE S A 5K Repayment of mortgage-backed
securities issued 31 (214,672) (152,465)
B AR A Dividend paid 16 (750,000) (350,000)
B RESIATRELE 23 Net cash used in financing activities (4,821,834) (5,087,293)
NERERMNEWE 8, Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
CRlZD) A8 cash equivalents 733,155 (8,788,010)
FPHERERI M B Beginning cash and cash equivalents 1,204,129 9,986,013
LCENNERERNEIA Effect of exchange rates on cash and
A0 cash equivalents 11,283 6,126
FRNERERALIE Ending cash and cash equivalents 1,948,567 1,204,129
BREEVSIKRROIE & Included in cash and cash equivalents of
ERU LI A the statement of financial position 17 1,819,225 1,204,129
BIEEHERIZSEE A Included in the assets of the BHKMC
RBERA R R>~ disposal group 19(@a) 129,342 —
FRY L RERVSIH Ending cash and cash equivalents 1,948,567 1,204,129

F115E225T et WA MR IREKA — 8BS ©

financial statements.

114  The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2013

The notes on pages 115 to 225 are an integral part of these consolidated



7_1<

B SSIRRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ((HKFRSs) which is a
collective term and includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRS), Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (HKASS) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, and the requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
available-for-sale investment securities, financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative financial instruments)
carried at fair value.

The principal accounting policies and methods of computation
used in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

EBRBIFARATE =%k 115



SREMEIREKME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.

116

FERTER
21. RPAFEMSZWEEN
@ F-B-=F-A-BBEX (a)
B3 R R A84T

THEMNREITTF-F—=%
R FHFERKEEX

BETENE1S (& ©
1T2) [ 55 3R R B0 51 33 )
EemlmRARE
MEMEEWREDAE -
ZEATERABREH
bR E HERE
LBHRAEEMTAR
BmRHOKEE BET
SEFTABRSEAIE -
ZRAFAESENIT
ARz E » 25
ACRRES S A LN EE
RV

BRMSREENETS .
(BATAR) T2 T A : #
B ARNHERAT "R
i WEREWIANE
BMITAEMSRRR L
WEHENRE > ARZ
EmAERIANLRE
BERNE TN ATEE
SRR 2 HE T YR Y
ERFTWEMNE - Utk
BATEEZ MM F KX
HKER o

The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2013

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1. Adoption of HKFRSs

New standards and amendments effective on 1
January 2013

The following standards and amendments effective in
2013, are relevant to the Group:

Amendment to HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial
Statements” changes the disclosure of items
presented in other comprehensive income in the
statement of comprehensive income. The
amendment requires entities to separate items
presented in other comprehensive income into
two groups, based on whether or not they may
be recycled to profit or loss in the future. Items
that will not be recycled will be presented
separately from items that may be recycled in
the future. This amendment mainly affects
disclosures in the financial statements.

Amendment to HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments:
Disclosures” on asset and liability offsetting
requires new disclosure requirements on
recognised financial instruments that are offset
in the statement of financial position, as well as
those recognised financial instruments that are
subject to master netting or similar arrangements
irrespective of whether they are offset. This
amendment mainly affects disclosures in the
financial statements.
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HKFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements”
replaces the requirements in HKAS 27
“Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements” relating to the preparation of
consolidated financial statements and HK-SIC 12
“Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities”. It
builds on existing principles by identifying the
concept of control as the determining factor in
whether an entity should be included within the
consolidated financial statements of the parent
company. The standard provides additional
guidance to assist in the determination of control
where this is difficult to assess. The adoption of
HKFRS 10 does not change the control
conclusions of the Group in respect of its
involvement with other entities.

HKFRS 12 “Disclosures of Interests in Other
Entities” includes the disclosure requirements for
all forms of interests in other entities, including
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates,
structured entities and unconsolidated structured
entities. It introduces the term “structured
entity”. The type of entity intended by the
standard setters to be a structured entity is
unlikely to differ significantly from an entity that
HK-SIC 12 previously described as a special
purpose entity. The disclosures required by
HKFRS 12 are generally more extensive than
those previously required by the respective
standards.
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. HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurements” establishes
a single source of fair value measurements and
disclosure requirements for use across HKFRSS.
HKFRS 13 does not change when an entity is
required to use fair value, but rather provides
guidance on how to measure fair value under
HKFRSs when fair value is required or permitted.
The adoption of HKFRS 13 results in additional
disclosures and there is no material impact on
the fair value measurements of the Group's
assets and liabilities.

o “Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011
Cycle” sets out amendments to a number of
standards which have no material impact on the
financial position or the comprehensive income
of the Group.

New standards, amendments and interpretations
issued but not yet effective

A number of new standards and amendments to
standards and interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after 1 January 2013, and have not
been applied in preparing these consolidated financial
statements. None of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group, except the following set out
below:

o HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” addresses the
classification, measurement and recognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities and
replaces part of HKAS 39.

The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2013
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Financial assets are required to be classified into
two measurement categories: those measured at
fair value, and those measured at amortised cost.
The decision is made at initial recognition. The
classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing its financial instruments and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
instrument.

For financial liabilities, the standard retains most
of the HKAS 39 requirements. The main change is
that, in cases where the fair value option is taken
for financial liabilities, the part of a fair value
change due to an entity’s own credit risk is
recorded in other comprehensive income rather
than the income statement, unless this creates
an accounting mismatch.

HKFRS 9 (Amendment) “Financial instruments”
brings into effect a substantial overhaul of hedge
accounting that will allow entities to better reflect
their risk management activities in the financial
statements. The most significant change from
hedge accounting under HKAS 39 is that entities
can defer the time value of options, the forward
element in forward contracts and currency basis
spreads in other comprehensive income.
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The previous mandatory effective date of HKFRS
9 was removed by the HKICPA in December 2013
and a mandatory effective date will be
determined after the entire replacement of HKAS
39 is completed.

The Group is considering the implications of the
whole standard including the other remaining
phase of HKFRS 9.

“Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013
Cycle” includes changes to HKFRS 1 “First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards”, HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations”,
HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” and HKAS
40 “Investment Property”. The amendments
largely apply to annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2014.

There are no other HKFRSS or interpretations that are
not yet effective that would be expected to have a
material impact on the Group.
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2.2. Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December 2013.

@)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities used for issuing mortgage-backed securities,
namely HKMC Funding Corporation (1) Limited and
Bauhinia MBS Limited) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of the subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of the
net assets of subsidiaries attributable to interests that
are not owned by the Company. They are presented in
the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
separately from equity attributable to equity holders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results
of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated income statement as an allocation of the
net profit for the period between non-controlling
interest and equity holders of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investment in the subsidiaries is stated at cost less
provision for impairment allowances. The results of the
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.
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Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests without change of control as transactions
with equity owners of the Group. For purchases from
the non-controlling interests, the difference between
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired
of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is
recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposal to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

Joint venture

A joint venture (formerly “jointly controlled entity”
under previous HKAS 31 “Interests in Joint Ventures”) is
an arrangement whereby the Group and other parties
contractually agree to share control of the
arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement. Joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting and are initially
recognised at cost.

The Group's share of its joint ventures’ profits or losses
is recognised in the income statement, and its share of
movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The
cumulative movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's
share of losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its
interest in the entity, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investment in the joint venture is stated at cost less
provision for impairment allowances with the results of
the joint venture accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.
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2:3.

2.4,

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income
statement for all interest bearing financial instruments using
the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument but does not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets
has been written down as a result of an impairment loss,
interest income is recognised using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss.

Non interest income other than those arising from
insurance and guarantee contracts under Note 2.22

(@) Fee and commission income

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an
accrual basis when the service has been provided.
Upfront arrangement fees that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate are recognised as an
adjustment to the effective interest rate in determining
interest income on the loans.

(b) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.
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2.5. Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss; loans and receivables; held-to-maturity investments;
and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the investments were
acquired. Management determines the classification of its
investments at initial recognition.

(@ Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets
held for trading, and those designated as at fair value
through profit or loss at inception. A financial asset is
classified as held for trading if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term or if it is part of
a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-making.
Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading
unless they are designated as hedges.

A financial asset is typically classified as fair value
through profit or loss at inception if it meets the
following criteria:

(i)  the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (sometimes referred to as an
accounting mismatch) that would otherwise arise
from measuring the financial assets or financial
liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases; or

(i) a group of financial assets and/or financial
liabilities is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management or
investment strategy, and this is the basis on
which information about the financial assets and/
or financial liabilities is provided internally to the
key management personnel.
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(i) financial assets, such as debt securities held,
containing one or more embedded derivatives
which significantly modify the cash flows, can be
designated at fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market and for which the
Group has no intention of trading immediately or in the
short term.

Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities that the Group’s management has
the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.
Where the Group sold or reclassified held-to-maturity
assets (i) other than due to an isolated event that is
beyond the Group’s control, is non-recurring and could
not have been reasonably anticipated by the Group,
such as a significant deterioration in the issuer’s
creditworthiness or (ii) other than an insignificant
amount of held-to-maturity assets, the entire category
would be reclassified as available-for-sale.

Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative
financial investments that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other categories.
Available-for-sale investments are those intended to
be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in
interest rate, exchange rate or market prices. They are
initially recognised at fair value including direct and
incremental transaction costs. They are subsequently
held at fair value.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are
expensed in the income statement.
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Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held-
to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Gains and losses
arising from changes in the fair value of the “financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss” category are
included in the income statement in the period in
which they arise. Unrealised gains and losses arising
from changes in the fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity (fair value reserve),
until the financial asset is derecognised or impaired at
which time the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in equity is reclassified to income
statement. However, interest calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in the income
statement. Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in the income statement
when the entity’s right to receive payment is
established.

If an asset measured at fair value has a bid price and
an ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread that is
most representative of fair value in the circumstances
shall be used to measure fair value. If there is no active
market for a financial asset, the Group establishes fair
value by using valuation techniques. These include the
use of recent arm'’s length transactions, reference to
other instruments that are substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis and other valuation
technigues commonly used by market participants.

The Group may choose to reclassify financial assets that
would meet the definition of loans and receivables out of the
available-for-sale categories if the Group has the intention
and ability to hold these financial assets for the foreseeable
future or until maturity at the date of reclassification.
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2.6.

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the
reclassification date. Fair value becomes the new cost or
amortised cost as applicable, and no reversals of fair value
gains or losses recorded before reclassification date are
subsequently made. Effective interest rates for financial
assets reclassified to loans and receivables and held-to-
maturity categories are determined at the reclassification
date.

Impairment of financial assets
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and
only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that
loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
assets is impaired includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about the following loss
events:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
obligor,

o a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinguency in interest or principal payments;

. the Group granting to the borrower, for economic
or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, a concession that the Group
would not otherwise consider;

. initiation of bankruptcy proceedings or other
financial reorganisation,

. the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or
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. observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows from a group of financial assets since
the initial recognition of those assets, although
the decrease cannot yet be identified with the
individual financial assets in the group, including:

— adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the group; or

— economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on the assets in the group.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that
are individually significant. For exposures which are
not individually significant, the Group will assess
impairment either individually or collectively. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset
in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is or
continues to be recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments carried at amortised cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the
asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity
investment has a variable interest rate, the discount
rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the contract.
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The calculation of the present value of estimated future
cash flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects
the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less
costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether
or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of
impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis
of similar credit risk characteristics which are relevant
to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of
such assets by being indicative of the debtors’ ability
to pay all amounts due according to the contractual
terms of the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on
the basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in
the group and historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to those in the group.
Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of
current observable data to reflect the effects of current
conditions that did not affect the period on which the
historical loss experience is based and to remove the
effects of conditions in the historical period that do not
exist currently.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of
assets should reflect and be directionally consistent
with changes in related observable data from period to
period which are indicative of changes in the
probability of losses in the group and their magnitude.
The methodology and assumptions used for estimating
future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the Group
to reduce any differences between loss estimates and
actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectable, it is written off against
the related allowance for loan impairment at the
discretion of the Credit Committee. Such loans are
written off after all the necessary procedures have
been completed and the amount of the loss has been
determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off decrease the amount of the
allowance for loan impairment in the income
Statement.
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If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance
account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in
the income statement.

Assets classified as available-for-sale investments

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that an
available-for-sale investment or a group of
available-for-sale investments is impaired. For debt
securities, the group uses the criteria referred to in (a)
above. In the case of equity investments classified as
available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of the security below its cost is also
evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such
evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in income statement — is
removed from equity and recognised in the income
statement. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of
the instrument classified as available-for-sale increases
and the increase can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
income statement, the impairment loss to the extent of
such change is reversed through the income
Statement.

Renegotiated loans

Loans that are either subject to collective impairment
assessment or individually significant and whose terms
have been renegotiated are no longer considered to be
past due but are treated as renegotiated loans.
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2.7. Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other
financial liabilities. All the financial liabilities are classified at
inception and recognised initially at fair value.

Debt securities issued in the statement of financial position
include (i) notes and Transferable Loan Certificates issued
under the Debt Issuance Programme (DIP), (ii) notes offered
to retail investors through the placing banks in standalone
retail bond issues and under the Retail Bond Issuance
Programme (RBIP) and (iii) notes issued under the Medium
Term Note (MTN) Programme. The mortgage-backed
securities (MBS) issued by structured entity through the
US$3 Billion Bauhinia Mortgage-backed Securitisation
Programme (“MBS Programme”) are recorded as
mortgage-backed securities issued in the statement of
financial position on consolidation of structured entities.
These notes (including MBS) are initially designated as either
(i) financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or (i)
other financial liabilities.

The notes (including those issued with embedded derivative
instruments) designated as at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition are carried at fair value, with changes
in fair value being recorded in the income statement. Those
notes which are designated as hedged items under a fair
value hedge are adjusted for the fair value changes subject
to the risk being hedged.

The notes designated as other financial liabilities are initially
recognised at fair value, which is the fair value of the
consideration received, net of transaction costs incurred.
The notes are subsequently stated at amortised costs; any
difference between proceeds net of transaction costs and
the redemption value is recognised in the income statement
over the period of the debt securities using the effective
interest method.

On redemption/repurchase of the notes, the resulting gains
or losses, being the difference between the redemption/
repurchase amount and the carrying amount, are recognised
in the income statement in the period in which the
redemption/repurchase takes place.
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2.8.

2.9.

Recognition and de-recognition of financial
instruments

Purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, available-for-sale and held-to-maturity
investments are recognised on the trade date, the date on
which the Group purchases or sells the assets. Loans and
receivables are recognised when cash is advanced to the
borrowers. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or where the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
debt securities issued are recognised on the trade date.
Other liabilities are recognised when such obligations arise.
Financial liabilities are derecognised from the statement of
financial position when and only when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair value. Fair values are
obtained from market prices in active markets, including
recent market transactions, and valuation techniques,
including discounted cash flow models and options pricing
models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets
when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is
negative. Interest receivables and payables arising from
derivatives are separately presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial
recognition is the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the
consideration given or received).

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments
are treated as separate derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of
the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in the income statement.
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The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or
loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a
hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being
hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as either:
(i) hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities
or firm commitments (“fair value hedge”); or, (ii) hedges of
highly probable future cash flows attributable to a recognised
asset or liability, or a forecast transaction (“cash flow
hedge”). Hedge accounting is used for derivatives
designated in this way provided certain criteria are met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction,
the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged
items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy
for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also
documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on
an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in
hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

(@) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualified as fair value hedges are
recorded in the income statement, together with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability
that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount of a
hedged item for which the effective interest method is
used, is amortised to income statement over the
period to maturity.

(b)y Ccash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualified as cash
flow hedges are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity. The gain or loss
relating to the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in the income statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the

income statement in the periods in which the hedged
item will affect income statement.
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When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when
a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in
equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised
when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised
in the income statement. When a forecast transaction
is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or
loss that was reported in equity is immediately
transferred to the income statement.

(c) Derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting
purposes

Derivative instruments entered into as economic
hedges that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
held at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the
fair value of any derivative instrument are recognised
immediately in the income statement.

2.10.0ffsetting financial instruments

2.1

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

.Repossessed assets

Repossessed collateral assets are accounted as assets held
for sale and reported in “Other assets” and the relevant
loans are derecognised. The repossessed collateral assets
are measured at lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.

2.12.Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker is the
person or group that allocates resources to and assesses the
performance of the operating segments of an entity. The
Group has determined the Chief Executive Officer as its chief
operating decision maker.
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Income directly associated with each segment is included in
determining segment performance. Funding costs are
allocated to each segment by way of internal fund transfer
pricing mechanisms. Cost allocation is based on the direct
costs incurred by the respective segment and apportionment
of management overheads.

2.13.Foreign currency translation

@)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000),
which is the Company's functional and the Company’s
and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at period-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are
translated with the closing rate as at the reporting
date. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost
denominated in a foreign currency are translated with
the exchange rate as at the date of initial recognition;
non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are
measured at fair value are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.
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In the case of changes in the fair value of monetary
assets denominated in foreign currency classified as
available-for-sale, a distinction is made between
translation differences resulting from changes in
amortised cost of the security and other changes in
the carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in the amortised cost
are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in
the carrying amount, except impairment, are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
instruments classified as available-for-sale financial
assets, are included in the fair value reserve in equity.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

o Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

° Income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions);

. All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income;
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3 Exchange differences arising from the above
process are reported in shareholders’ equity as
translation reserve; and

o On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
currency instruments designated as hedges of
such investments, are taken to other
comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is disposed of, or partially disposed of,
such exchange differences are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of the
gain or loss on sale.

(d) Disposal of foreign operation

On disposal of foreign operation, all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the equity holders of the
Company are taken to the income statement.

2.14.Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or are recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives.

Leasehold improvements  over the unexpired period of the lease
Furniture and fixtures over the unexpired period of the lease

Computer 3years
Office equipment 3years
Motor vehicle 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

Gain and loss on disposal is determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. It is included in the income
Statement.

2.15.Impairment of investment in subsidiaries, joint

venture, and other non-financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that its interests in
joint venture are impaired. Such objective evidence includes
whether there has been any significant adverse changes in
the technological, market, economic or legal environment in
which the joint venture operates or whether there has been
a significant or prolonged decline in value below their cost. If
there is an indication that an interest in an associate or joint
venture is impaired, the Group assesses whether the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement for the amount by which the carrying amount is
lower than the higher of the investment's fair value less
costs to sell or value in use. Any reversal of such impairment
loss in subsequent periods is reversed through income
Statement.

Impairment testing of the investment in a subsidiary is
required upon receiving a dividend from that subsidiary if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary concerned in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the subsidiary in the Company’s
statement of financial position exceeds the carrying amount
of the subsidiary’s net assets including goodwill in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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2.16.Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Current income tax is calculated on the basis of the tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred income tax
is provided on temporary differences arising from investment
in the subsidiary, except where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax related to fair value re-measurement of
available-for-sale investments and cash flow hedges, which
are charged or credited directly to other comprehensive
income, is also credited or charged directly to other
comprehensive income and is subsequently recognised in
the income statement together with the deferred gain or
loss.
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2.17.Employee benefits

(@)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long-
service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of each reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave, maternity or
paternity leave are recognised when the absence
ocCCcurs.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses, based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit after certain adjustments. The
Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created constructive obligations.

Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme
and a defined contribution scheme, the assets of
which are generally held in separate trustee —
administered funds. These pension plans are generally
funded by payments from employees and by the
Group.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident
fund scheme and defined contribution scheme are
expensed as incurred and are reduced by the portion
of employer contributions being forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior to full vesting
of the employer contributions.
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Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the
following dates: (a) when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the
entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within
the scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment of
termination benefits. In the case of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination
benefits are measured based on the number of
employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period are discounted to their present value.

2.18.Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events
where it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has
been reliably estimated.

Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
measured at the present value of the expenditure expected
to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation.

2.19.Leases

@)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. The Group entered into
operating leases primarily as lessee. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are charged to the income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease
period has expired, any payment required to be made
to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an
expense in the period in which termination takes place.
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(b) Finance leases

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. The Group entered into finance leases
primarily as lessor. Finance leases are capitalised as
receivables at the lease’s commencement at the lower
of the fair value of the leased property and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The difference
between the gross receivable and the present value of
the receivable is recognised as unearned finance
income. Lease income is recognised over the term of
the lease using the net investment method, which
reflects a constant periodic rate of return. Hire
purchase contracts having the characteristics of a
finance lease are accounted for in the same manner as
finance leases. Impairment allowances are accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policies set out
in Note 2.6.

2.20.Cash and cash equivalents

2.21

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three
months’ maturity from the date of acquisition, including cash
and balances with banks that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value.

.Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Group to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss
it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments
when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on the date that the guarantee was
given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group's liabilities
under such guarantees are measured at the higher of the
amount determined in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions,
Ccontingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” and the
amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation
recognised. Any changes in the liability relating to financial
guarantees are taken to the income statement.
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The guarantees given to investors of mortgage-backed
securities issued by the Company for the timely repayment
of guaranteed MBS are recorded as financial guarantees
under HKAS 39 in the Company’s statement of financial
position.

Other financial guarantee contracts are accounted for as
insurance contracts in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in Note 2.22 (b).

2.22.Insurance and other guarantee contracts

@)

Mortgage insurance contracts

The mortgage insurance business under the Mortgage
Insurance Programme of the Group is accounted for on
the annual accounting basis. Under the annual
accounting approach, the Group makes provisions
based on credible estimates of future income and
outgoings to determine the underwriting result for the
current accounting period. The underwriting result
includes any adjustments arising from the correction of
the previous estimates.

Gross premiums represent direct business written
through Authorized Institutions (Als) as defined in
accordance with the Banking Ordinance during an
accounting period. The gross premiums after deduction
of discounts, include the reinsurance premiums to be
paid to the approved reinsurers, the risk premiums and
servicing fees earned by the Group. The net premiums
are recognised as income on a time-apportioned basis
during the time the insurance coverage is effective.

Unearned premiums represent that portion of net
premiums written which are estimated to relate to
risks and services subsequent to the end of each
reporting period.
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Provisions are made for outstanding claims, claims
incurred but not reported and loss reserve at the end
of each reporting period. For risk-sharing business,
50% or 75% of the net risk premiums earned in a year
depending on the respective product is set aside as a
contingency Reserve for a period of time in
accordance with relevant regulatory guidelines and as
considered appropriate by the directors. Withdrawals
from the Contingency Reserve can be made to meet
excess claims at any time during the period. At the end
of the reporting period, the unutilised balance of the
Contingency Reserve can be released to retained
profits.

Reinsurance contracts refer to contracts entered into
by the Group with reinsurers under which the Group is
compensated for losses on one or more insurance
contracts issued by the Group. Benefits to which the
Group is entitled under its reinsurance contracts held
are recognised as reinsurance assets. These assets
consist of claims recoverable from reinsurers and
receivables that are dependent on the expected claims
and benefits arising under the related reinsured
insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from or due
to reinsurers are measured consistently with the
amounts associated with the reinsured insurance
contracts and in accordance with the terms of each
reinsurance contract. Reinsurance assets are primarily
premiums for reinsurance contracts and are
recognised as an expense.

commissions are recognised in the income statement
as incurred.
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(b) Other guarantee and insurance contracts

The Group provides financial guarantees for loan
facilities provided to eligible small and medium-sized
enterprises (“SMEs") and non-listed enterprises, in
return for guarantee fee, and insurance coverage on
reverse mortgage provided to elderly people, in return
for insurance premium.

The Group will assess if its recognised liabilities are
adeqguate on each reporting date, using the current
estimates of future cash flows under these contracts. If
the assessment shows that the carrying amount of its
guarantee and insurance liabilities are inadequate in
the light of the estimated future cash flows, the
shortfall shall be recognised in the income statement.

50% of the guarantee fee earned and 75% of the
insurance premium earned in a year is set aside as a
Contingency Reserve for a period of time in
accordance with relevant regulatory guidelines and as
considered by directors to be appropriate. Withdrawals
from the Contingency Reserve can be made to meet
excess claims at any time during the period. At the end
of the reporting period, the unutilised balance of the
Contingency Reserve can be released to retained
profits.

2.23.Dividend distribution

Dividend proposed or declared after the end of each
reporting period is disclosed as a separate component of
shareholders’ equity and as a liability in the period in which
the dividends are approved by shareholders.
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2.24.Non-current assets held for sale and disposal

groups

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale and stated at the lower of carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell if their carrying amount is
recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is
considered highly probable.

Financial risk management

3.1. Strategy in using financial instruments

The major activities of the Group are (i) to purchase portfolios
of mortgages or loans; (i) to raise financing for its purchase
of assets through issuance of debt securities; and (iii) to
provide mortgage insurance cover to Als in respect of
mortgage loans originated by such Als and secured on
residential properties in Hong Kong; (iv) to provide financial
guarantee cover to Als in respect of loans originated by such
Als to SMEs and non-listed enterprises in Hong Kong; (v) to
provide insurance cover to Als in respect of reverse
mortgage loans originated by such Als to elderly people; and
(vi) to operate a centralised microfinance platform to support
microfinance loans. By their nature, the Group’s activities are
principally related to the use of financial instruments
including cash, loans, debts and derivatives.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks
and those activities involve the analysis, evaluation,
acceptance and management of some degree of risk or
combination of risks. The Group manages the risks in a
prudent manner in sustaining the Group's financial
performance.

The Corporate Risk Management Committee is set up at
corporate level to provide oversight of the enterprise-wide
risk matters including financial and non-financial risks. The
policies and limits for various risks are monitored and
reviewed regularly by various management committees,
including the Credit Committee, Asset and Liability
Committee (ALCO), Transaction Approval Committee (TAC)
and Operational Risk Committee (ORC) which report to
Corporate Risk Management Committee.
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The Credit Committee oversees the credit policies and
standards for asset acquisition and mortgage insurance. The
ALCO oversees the implementation of market risk
management and investment guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors. The TAC conducts an in-depth analysis of
pricing economics and associated credit risks for business
transactions, whilst taking into consideration the latest
market conditions and business strategies approved by the
Board. The ORC is responsible for ensuring that all business
entities and line functions maintain an effective operational
risk and internal control framework. The ORC is also
responsible for providing directions and resolving issues
related to policies, controls and management of operational
issues referred to by line functions, as well as ensuring
prompt and appropriate corrective action in response to
audit findings related to operational risks or internal controls.
In addition, Internal Audit is responsible for the independent
review of risk management and the control environment.
The most important types of risks are credit risk, liquidity risk
and market risk which includes currency risk, interest rate
risk and equity price risk.

Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are its loan portfolio,
investment securities, cash and short-term funds. The credit
risk on liquid funds and investment securities is limited
because the credit ratings of the counterparties, mainly
sovereigns, quasi-sovereign agencies, banks and companies,
should meet the minimum requirement in accordance with
the investment guidelines approved by the Board of
Directors.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its loan
portfolio, which is the risk that a loan borrower will be unable
to pay amounts in full when due. Allowance for impairment
is provided for losses that have been incurred at the end of
the reporting period.

Significant changes in the economy and local property
market could result in losses that are different from those
provided for at the end of the reporting period. The Group
therefore has a prudent policy for managing its exposure to
credit risk.
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To maintain the quality of the asset and mortgage insurance
portfolios, the Group adheres to a four-pronged approach to
(i) select Approved Sellers with established criteria, (i) adopt
prudent asset purchasing criteria and insurance eligibility
criteria, (iii) conduct effective due diligence reviews and (iv)
ensure adequate protection for higher-risk assets or
transactions.

Credit risk exposures on mortgage loans of the Group are
spread over a large number of customers and
counterparties. The underlying collaterals on the Group's
mortgage exposures are located in Hong Kong and Korea.

The Group undertakes ongoing credit review with special
attention paid to problem loans. Operation units will monitor
these loans and take recovery action such as establishing
relief plan with borrowers in order to maximise recoveries.
Loan impairment assessment is performed regularly and
impairment allowance is charged to income statement in
accordance with the guidelines approved by the Credit
Committee.

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group has implemented guidelines on the acceptability
of specific classes of collateral on credit risk mitigation,
which are subject to regular review.

Loan portfolio

The principal collateral types for mortgage portfolio mainly
consist of properties and the deferred consideration (Note
28). For finance lease receivable, the collateral types include
taxi and public light bus licenses. Mortgage portfolio and
finance lease receivable are generally fully secured by
collateral. The current collateral value of properties is
determined with the use of public indices on a portfolio
basis. For other non-mortgage portfolio, no collateral is
generally sought.
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Time deposits with banks and investment securities

Collaterals are generally not sought for time deposits with
banks as the exposures are considered to be low risk due to
the nature of the counterparties and short term maturity.
Investment securities are generally unsecured, with the
exception of asset-backed securities which are secured by
properties or other assets.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into International Swap Dealers Association
master agreement with all counterparties for derivative
transactions.

For financial instruments such as derivatives, exposures are
monitored against counterparty risk limits established in
accordance with the investment guidelines and credit risk
policy of the Group. These counterparty risk limits are
subject to regular review by the Credit Committee on a semi-
annual basis. At any one time, the amount subject to
counterparty risk is limited to the current fair value of
instruments favourable to the Group (i.e. assets with positive
fair value), which in relation to derivatives is only a small
fraction of the contract, or notional values used to express
the volume of instruments outstanding. This counterparty
risk exposure is managed as part of the overall credit limits
with counterparties, together with potential exposures from
market movements.

Mortgage insurance contracts, other guarantee and
insurance contracts

The details are disclosed in Note 3.5.

Settlement risk arises in any situation where a payment in
cash, securities or equities is made in the expectation of a
corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily
settlement limits are established for each counterparty to
cover the aggregate of all settlement risk arising from the
Group’s market transactions on any single day.
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waR : credit risk of off-balance sheet exposures are as
follows:
A EH PN
The Group The Company
F=%-= FT=2-=%
T=EETr=[E +=A=t-H
As at As at
31December  31December 31December 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2012
TR THL TR THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
el Financial guarantees
(BB A (contractual amount under
HHIKEALH) the MBS programme) - - - 214,742
BN IR Total risk-in-force
— RIBRE % — mortgage insurance
business 14,453,649 16,614,898 15,026,481 17,101,150
— 2R R — other guarantee and
RIS insurance business 1,625,083 1,152,296 1,625,083 1,152,296

16,078,732 17,767,194 16,651,564 18,468,188
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Credit quality of the loan portfolio is analysed as

™ follows:
REM Y N
The Group The Company
=% F-2-=% T-2-=F
+=ZA=+-H +=A=+-H +=A=1+—H
As at As at As at
31 December  31December 31 December 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2012
TERT BT TART FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RO ARE Neither past due nor impaired 21,969,373 25,518,011 16,687,185 21,607,824
BEERRE Past due but not impaired 298,671 379,243 255,106 337,812
BRE Impaired 2,178 2,197 1,578 2,197
RHEA B Gross loan portfolio 22,270,222 25,899,451 16,943,869 21,947,833
FRRERS Allowance for loan impairment (1,825) (4,052) (1,295) (4,030)
22,268,397 25,895,399 16,942,574 21,943,803
T E2 IREAR R @ HA 75 R ORE Y The credit quality of loans that were neither past due

RAREENERRE 8%
AREH R AR A B IFR R G0

nor impaired as at the end of the reporting period can
be assessed by reference to the internal rating system

171 © adopted by the Group.
REH ADF
The Group The Company
T=-F-= %=

+=ZA=1+—-H

As at
31 December  31December 31 December 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2012
TER THET TART FEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RA - Grades:
1239 1t03 21,950,123 25,500,399 16,673,649 21,595,505
4R 4 383 - 383 -
54 5 18,867 17,612 13,153 12,319
21,969,373 25,518,011 16,687,185 21,607,824
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Grades 1 to 3 include loans with either no credit risk or
no recent past due history; and with different levels of
credit enhancements in addition to the collateral held
as security for mortgage portfolio and finance lease
receivable.

Grade 4 includes loans with recent past due history
and with different levels of credit enhancement in
addition to the collateral held as security for mortgage

ERIZIB O E S R R 4
R KA IR am o

portfolio and finance lease receivable.

S5RBEITHNEEHRERIER
VIR AREERERIZE
UK A MR TH 49 57 UK 5K

Grade 5 includes loans with recent past due history
and with collateral held as security for mortgage
portfolio and finance lease receivable.

A o
€ EHIERRER DT () Loans past due but not impaired

AT T2RERS @EER The analysis below shows the gross amount of loans
that were past due but not impaired at the end of the
reporting period:

BERN TR EFAT

AREH VNN
The Group The Company
F-2-=% TF=%—=f% = F=5—=%
+=A=+-B tZA=t-H +=A=+—A
As at As at As at
31December  31December 31 December 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2012
TER THT TER THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
18 HR AT () Past due:
=NRFMAT Three months or less 296,306 376,078 252,741 334,647
NNABAT Six months or less but
E#I=1H over three months 369 567 369 561
BERMNA Over six months 1,996 2,604 1,996 2,604
BA Total 298,671 379,243 255,106 337,812
HebfHm R Of which fair value of
ERLH MR collateral and other credit

HATE enhancement 2,156,076 2,531,140 2,051,600 2,429,776
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Individually impaired loans

Individually impaired loans of the Group and the
Company before taking into account the cash flows
from collateral held and credit enhancement amounted
to HK$2,178,000 (2012: HK$2,197,000) and
HK$1,578,000 (2012: HK$2,197,000) respectively.

The fair value of related collateral held and credit
enhancement of the Group and the Company for
individually impaired loans amounted to HK$4,399,000
(2012: HK$8,175,000).

Repossessed properties

The Group and the Company obtained assets by taking
possession of collateral held as security.

Repossessed properties are sold as soon as
practicable, with the proceeds used to reduce the
outstanding indebtedness and are classified in the
statement of financial position within “Other assets”. If
excess funds arise after repayment of the outstanding
indebtedness, they are distributed to the beneficiaries
of the assets under the applicable laws.

Cash and short-term funds

According to the investment guidelines approved by
the Board of Directors, the Group can only place
deposits with note-issuing banks or banks with a
certain minimum credit rating. As at 31 December 2013
and 31 December 2012, the minimum acceptable
short-term credit ratings are A-2 (Standard and Poor’s),
P-2 (Moody's) and F-2 (Fitch).

Investment securities

According to the investment guidelines approved by
the Board of Directors, the Group can only invest in
debt securities with a certain minimum credit rating.
The proportion of investments according to rating
categories is monitored and reviewed by ALCO.
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The table below presents an analysis of debt securities
by rating designation as at the end of the reporting
period, based on external credit agency’s ratings
SIUEFFTED T o fRIE 52K & (Standard and Poor's, Moody's and Fitch). In the
RABER - MRAIEHFKRITA absence of issue-specific ratings, the ratings for the
HIIEL o issuers are reported.

q#tHET % BEZEHIES
Available-for-sale  Held-to-maturity BE
F-8-=%+-A=+-H securities securities Total
The Group and the Company THR TAT TER
As at 31 December 2013 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FRARKLT

AAA/Aa AAA/Aaa 384,003 2,159,071 2,543,074
AA- 2 AA+ /Aa3 E A AA-10 AA+/Aa3 0 A 2,015,252 4,984,285 6,999,537

A- EA+ /A3EAT A-t0 A+/A310 A1 542,650 1,417,239 1,959,889
B Total 2,941,905 8,560,595 11,502,500
EHETR BEHZIHIIA

Available-for-sale Held-to-maturity B
F=F-——%+=A=1+-H securities securities Total
The Group and the Company TAT TEL THBL
As at 31 December 2012 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA /Aaa AAA/Aaa 952,959 2,396,837 3,349,796
AA- % AA+ /Aa3 2 Aal AA- 10 AA+/Aa3 10 Aa1 1,256,388 5,280,188 6,536,576
A- EA+ /A3EAT A-t0 A+/A310 A1 284,983 1,560,783 1,845,766
BE Total 2,494,330 9,237,808 11,732,138
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3.3. Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risks, which is the
risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risks arise from open positions in interest
rate, currency and equity products, all of which are exposed
to general and specific market movements and changes in
the level of volatility of market rates or prices such as
interest rates, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and
equity prices. The Group'’s exposures to market risk primarily
arise from the interest rate management of the entity’s
financial instruments of different repricing characteristics, or
from the net exposure of the foreign currency denominated
financial instruments. The Group hedges a major proportion
of its existing interest rate risk of the fixed-rate bond
issuance using fair value hedges in the form of interest rate
swaps by swapping into floating-rate funding to better match
the floating-rate assets. The Group also hedges the net
exposure of the foreign-currency denominated debts issued
and the overseas residential mortgage loans by the use of
Cross-currency swaps as fair value hedges and economic
hedges respectively.

The management of market risk is principally undertaken by
the Treasury Department using risk limits approved by the
Board of Directors. Strategies on interest rate risk
management, financing, hedging, investments are
formulated by ALCO. Regular meetings are held to review
the latest conditions in the financial markets and the asset-
liability portfolio mix. The Treasury Department is responsible
for monitoring financial market movements and executing
transactions in the cash, derivatives and debt markets in
accordance with the strategies laid down by ALCO. The
middle office monitors the compliance of risk limits and
performs stress tests to assess the potential size of losses
that could arise in extreme conditions. The results of the
stress tests are reviewed by ALCO.
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A principal part of the interest rate risk management is to
monitor the sensitivity of projected net interest income
under different interest rate scenarios and to mitigate the
negative impact through hedging operations. A 20 basis
points parallel downward shift of the interest rate curve as at
31 December 2013 would decrease the future net interest
income for the next 12 months by less than HK$1 million
(2012: increase by around HK$1 million) and increase by less
than HK$1 million (2012: decrease by around HK$1 million)
for a similar upward parallel shift.

As at 31 December 2013, if interest rates at that date had
experienced a 20 basis points parallel shift downwards, profit
for the year would have been higher by less than HK$1
million (2012: by less than HK$1 million) and the fair value
reserve would have been higher by around HK$5 million
(2012: less than HK$1 million) as at 31 December 2013. If
interest rates had experienced a 20 basis points parallel shift
upwards, profit for the year would have been lower by less
than HK$1 million (2012: by less than HK$1 million) and the
fair value reserve would have been lower by around HK$6
million (2012: less than HK$1 million).

As at 31 December 2013, with all other variables held
constant, if the HK dollar had weakened by 100 price interest
points against the US dollar, profit for the year would have
been around HK$11 million higher (2012: HK$11 million).
Conversely, if the HK dollar had strengthened by 100 price
interest points against the US dollar, profit for the year would
have been around HK$11 million lower (2012: HK$11 million).

As at 31 December 2013, with all other variables held
constant, if the HK dollar had weakened by 100 price interest
points against foreign currencies other than US dollar, profit
for the year would have been around HK$18 million higher
(2012: HK$18 million). Conversely, if the HK dollar had
strengthened by 100 price interest points against foreign
currencies other than US dollar, profit for the year would
have been around HK$18 million lower (2012: HK$18 million).
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As at 31 December 2013, with all other variables held
constant, if the price of exchange-traded funds and real
estate investment trust had decreased by 1%, the fair value
reserve would have been around HK$9 million lower (2012:
HK$33 million). Conversely, if the price of exchange-traded
funds and real estate investment trust had increased by 1%,
the fair value reserve would have been around HK$9 million
higher (2012: HK$33 million).

The increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rate,
exchange rates and market price for a 12-month period.

(@  Currency risk

The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations
in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rate on its
financial position and cash flows. The Board sets
allowable currencies for investment purposes. The
ALCO sets limits on the currency exposure that may be
undertaken, which is monitored daily. At funding side,
the multi-currency feature of the MTN programme
enables the Group to issue notes in major currencies,
including US dollars, renminbi, Singapore dollars,
British pounds, Australian dollars, euro and Japanese
yen. All foreign currency-denominated MTN debts are
fully hedged into either US dollars or Hong Kong
dollars.
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The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to
foreign currency exchange rate risk. Included in the
tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying amounts,
categorised by currency.

D o
Hithopm
BT %7  Other foreign B
HKD usb currencies Total
TAx TEx TEx TEx
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FT-E-=%+=B=1-H Asat31December 2013
B= Assets
NehESRE Cash and short-term funds 8,293,174 3,228,038 236,321 11,757,533
R 8 RL 5k Interest and remittance receivables 215,585 123,378 29,837 368,800
FERF” Assets held for sale - - 129,767 129,767
fTESBIA Derivative financial instruments 774,360 57,066 - 831,426
AR 44 Loan portfolio, net 20,012,458 2,255,939 - 22,268,397
IEARR : Investment securities;
— e — available-for-sale 1,455,678 1,642,268 762,509 3,860,455
—HEZEIH — held-to-maturity 2,934,264 4,419,131 1,207,200 8,560,595
MR L REMAF  Prepayments, deposits and
other assets 17,929 101 - 18,030
BER Fixed assets 44,085 - - 44,085
BRER" Reinsurance assets 180,742 - - 180,742
RERE Total assets 33,928,275 11,725,921 2,365,634 48,019,830
il Liabilities
R FIE Interest payable 106,646 68,277 20,907 195,830
RIFHEIR « NATFF R Accounts payable, accrued
Hitfifi expenses and other liabilities 4,611,243 1,017 - 4,612,260
SHEERFEEENMGE  Liablites directly associated with
assets held for sale - - 384 384
TELRIA Derivative financial instruments 785,458 - - 785,458
LERmA R Current income tax liabilities 144,665 - - 144,665
BEF I 7 Deferred income tax liabilities 57,156 - - 57,156
tRB SR Insurance liabilities 1,294,712 - - 1,294,712
B RIS Debt securities issued 14,205,142 8,485,416 8,664,627 31,355,185
fREH Total liabilities 21,205,022 8,554,710 8,685,918 38,445,650
R0AT Net position 12,723,253 3.171,21 (6,320,284) 9,574,180
RERREINEG W6 Off-balance sheet net notional
position* (14,229,537) 4,972,917 8,684,920 (571,700)
“ [REARERINEE LFES] g "Off-balance sheet net notional position” represents the
BINMITEERMIA(EZER difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency
BUBME A S B F 5 g s X derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
RIMNBNESTEEAFED reduce the Group's exposure to currency movements and their
ZA ° fair values.
& B30 B HE 4042 75 T /O R £ i & Amounts included debt securities issued in British pounds of
S0E % K& 3512 7 JT HY S8 JT HK$4 billion and Australian dollars of HK$3.5 billion.
Sl -

158 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2013



N
The Company

F-Z-=F+-A=+—-H Asat 31 December 2013

BT e
HKD UsD
TER TER
HK$'000 HK$'000

=8
Other foreign
currencies
TR
HK$'000

/%\g)ﬁ\
Total
T
HK$'000

"= Assets
NeRkRHRe Cash and short-term funds 8,291,123 3,228,038 236,321 11,755,482
R 2 ROCFR Interest and remittance receivables 206,189 123,378 29,837 359,404
fTAESRIE Derivative financial instruments 774,360 57,066 - 831,426
RRAR BT Loan portfolio, net 14,686,635 2,255,939 - 16,942,574
AR : Investment securities:

—AfRHE — avallable-for-sale 1,455,678 1,642,268 762,509 3,860,455

—HEEHH — held-to-maturity 2,934,264 4,419,131 1,207,200 8,560,595
IEAEEA Interests in subsidiaries 5,192,190 - 102,060 5,294,250
TR wE REMAZ=  Prepayments, deposits and

other assets 16,707 101 - 16,808

BE R~ Fixed assets 44,085 - - 44,085
BREA Reinsurance assets 181,053 - - 181,053
REBE Total assets 33,782,284 11,725,921 2,337,927 47,846,132
Atk Liabilities
RS2 Interest payable 106,646 68,277 20,907 195,830
RIFHEIR » NATFF % R Accounts payable, accrued

HA R expenses and other liabilities 4,611,711 1,017 - 4,612,728
TESBIE Derivative financial instruments 785,458 - - 785,458
EE Currentincome tax liabilities 144,665 - - 144,665
BRI 7 Deferred income tax liabilities 56,911 - - 56,911
R AR Insurance liabilities 1,297,034 - - 1,297,034
BERIREIEE Debt securities issued 14,205,142 8,485,416 8,664,627 31,355,185
RREF Total liabilities 21,207,567 8,554,710 8,685,534 38,447,811
FOAH Net position 12,574,717 3.171.21 (6,347,607) 9,398,321
RERREINEE WS Off-balance sheet net notional

position* (14,229,537) 4,972,917 8,684,920 (571,700)

[RF=RBRIN SR LF
BINPITESRIA(ZER

PRI A2 7] T3¢

HFEIR

) H B e TS E R FER

&

BB E40ZE T RER
55 UE %5 J 3542 78 7T B R TT fit

FiES o

#

“Off-balance sheet net notional position” represents the
difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency
derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
reduce the Company’s exposure to currency movements and

their fair values.

Amounts included debt securities issued in British pounds of
HK$4 billion and Australian dollars of HK$3.5 billion.
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The Group

FZE-ZF+ZA=1—H Asat31December 2012

BT
HKD
T
HK$'000

e
UsD
T
HK$'000

X
Other foreign
currencies
Tix
HK$'000

B
Total
TET
HK$'000

R ASSets
NeRhEHRE Cash and short-term funds 8,424,927 746,380 544,237 9,715,544
R 2 ROCR Interest and remittance receivables 278,110 157,079 34,401 469,590
TESBTA Derivative financial instruments 1,303,778 139,235 - 1,443,013
RRAR T Loan portfolio, net 21,540,141 4,355,258 - 25,895,399
EARR : Investment securities:

—AfHE — available-for-sale 1,691,810 3,688,414 432,603 5,812,827

—BEZEHH — held-to-maturity 3,410,103 4,588 260 1,239,445 9,237,808
MR TR - we REMAZ~  Prepayments, deposits and

other assets 39,601 - 40 39,641

ERE Fixed assets 29,116 - 12 29,128
BRER> Reinsurance assets 222,007 - - 222,007
RERE Total assets 36,939,593 13,674,626 2,250,738 52,864,957
ffk Liabilities
RIfSFIE Interest payable 128,050 82926 24,780 235,756
RIFHEIR « NATFF R Accounts payable, accrued

Hitfifi expenses and other liabilities 4,463,882 716 518 4,465,116
TESBIE Derivative financial instruments 174,082 1,013 - 175,095
LEBIA R Current income tax liabilities 101,464 - 123 101,587
BEF IS 7 Deferred income tax liabilities 109,404 - - 109,404
R AR Insurance liabilities 1,545,863 - - 1,545,863
BERIRZIS Debt securities issued 17,731,198 10,727,312 7,946, 117* 36,404,627
BRITIRIBIE S Mortgage-backed securities issued 214,672 - - 214,672
RREF Total liabilities 24,468 615 10,811,967 7,971,538 43,252,120
FOAT Net position 12,470,978 2,862,659 (5,720,800) 9612837
RERREINEE WS Off-balance sheet net notional

position* (13,519,119) 5,559,632 7,930,584 (28,903)

* [RF AR SR LT #
BINMITEERMIA(EZER
VAR AR S ] T 55 MR B A X
) H) B LM S E RN FER

"Off-balance sheet net notional position” represents the
difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency
derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements and their

Z& ° fair values.
& BABREBZAB T RE R & Amounts included debt securities issued in British pounds of

Sk % R A01Z 7% TTHY R TR
FiLFH ©

HK$2.5 billion and Australian dollars of HK$4 billion.
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YN
The Company

H oM
%L Otherforeign Jeki

) currencies Total
THL TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-Z-—-F+=-A=1—H Asat31December 2012
R ASSEts
NehEHRE Cash and short-term funds 8,421,586 746,380 420,377 9,588,343
R 2 ROCFR Interest and remittance receivables 269,647 157,079 33,689 460,415
ITESRMTA Derivative financial instruments 1,303,778 139,235 - 1,443,013
RRAR BT Loan portfolio, net 17,588 545 4,355,258 - 21,943 803
AR : Investment securities:

—AfRHE — avallable-for-sale 1,691,810 3,688 414 432,603 5,812,827

—HEREH — held-to-maturity 3,410,103 4,588 260 1,239,445 9,237,808
MEA TR Interests in subsidiaries 3,841,609 - 102,060 3,943,669
M TR - we REMAZT  Prepayments, deposits and

other assets 46,520 - - 46,520

Bl Fixed assets 29116 - - 29116
BRE A Reinsurance assets 222,372 - = 222,372
REBE Total assets 36,825,086 13,674,626 2,228,174 52,727,886
il Liabilities
RS2 Interest payable 127,980 82,926 24,780 235,686
RIFHEIR » NATFF R Accounts payable, accrued

Hibfif expenses and other liabilities 4,686,763 716 250 4,687,729
TESBIE Derivative financial instruments 174,082 1,013 - 175,095
L Current income tax liabilities 100,563 - - 100,563
BRI 7 Deferred income tax liabilities 109,103 - - 109,103
RIS R Insurance liabilities 1,548,076 - = 1,548,076
BER{IREIE Debt securities issued 17,731,198 10,727,312 7.946,117* 36,404,627
RREF Total liabilities 24,477,765 10,811,967 7971147 43,260,879
FOAH Net position 12,347,321 2,862,659 (5,742,973) 9,467,007
RERREINEE LS Off-balance sheet net notional

position* (13,519,119) 5,559,632 7,930,584 (28,903)

[RF=RBRIN SR LF
BINPITESRIA(ZER

PRI A2 7] T3¢

HFEIR
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“Off-balance sheet net notional position” represents the
difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency
derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
reduce the Company’s exposure to currency movements and
their fair values.

Amounts included debt securities issued in British pounds of
HK$2.5 billion and Australian dollars of HK$4 billion.
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Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value
interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group takes on exposure to the
effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market
interest rates on both its fair value and cash flow risks.
Interest margins may increase as a result of such
changes but may reduce or create losses in the event
that unexpected movements arise. The ALCO sets
limits on the level of interest rate mismatch that may
be undertaken, which is monitored regularly.

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to
interest rate risks. Included in the tables are the assets
and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the
earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates. The
carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments,
which are principally used to reduce the Group's
exposure to interest rate movements, are included
under the heading “Non-interest bearing”.
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-MARE =MARE —EHE
E=MA B-F BLf

-MNAR Over over Oover FENE FitE
Upto 1monthto 3months  1yearto Over Non-interest Jak i
1month  3months  to1year 5 years 5 years bearing Total
KEMR TEL TER TEL TiEn TEL TR TR
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FoE-=5+-f=1-
=t As at 31 December 2013
B= Assets
NekEERe Cash and short-term funds 3,301,620 1,019,067 7,060,241 - - 376,605 11,757,533
R R 8 B3R Interest and remittance
receivables - - - - - 368,800 368,800
BER®E Assets held for sale 129,342 - - - - 425 129,767
fTHEERT A Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 831,426 831,426
TR A Loan portfolio, net 18,603,163 3,603,914 23,491 35,994 1,835 - 22,268,397
IFHEA - Investment securities:
— e — avallable-for-sale 217,074 571,488 1,214,741 938,602 - 918,550 3,860,455
—BEZREH — held-to-maturity 283,205 388,885 1,548,679 2,638,646 3,701,180 - 8,560,595
T FIR 4 R E A 7 Prepayments, deposits and
other assets - - - - - 18,030 18,030
ER= Fixed assets - - - - - 44,085 44,085
BRE A Reinsurance assets - - - - - 180,742 180,742
REEE Total assets 22,534,404 5,583,354 9,847,152 3,613,242 3,703,015 2,738,663 48,019,830
ik Liabilities
RIS Interest payable - - - - - 195830 195830
REFHHKIR - REfSFF2 R Accounts payable, accrued
Hibhfi expenses and other liabilities 4,214,241 - - - - 398,019 4,612,260
SEERFEEENS  Liabilities directly associated with
i assets held for sale - - - - - 384 384
fTHEERTIEA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 785,458 785,458
ELHaH Current income tax liabilities - - - - - 144,665 144,665
BIEHRRAGR Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - - 57,156 57,156
RIEAR Insurance liabilities - - - - - 1,294,712 1,294,712
BR{IREILH Debt securities issued 4910174 9,766,814 4,801,547 9,349,443 2,527,207 - 31,355,185
AREH Total liabilities 9,124,415 9,766,814 4,801,547 9,349,443 2,527,207 2,876,224 38,445,650
FESREROSH*  Totalinterest sensitivity gap* 13,409,989  (4,183,460) 5,045,605 (5,736,201) 1,175,808
F®fTETA Interest rate derivatives (notional
(HoadMm2 L eH)  amounts of net position) (5,627,543) (10,982,823) 4,732,875 9,019,265 2,286,526
* RUTAPTESRTASELX & before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments

BAITHRSZIESF N on the debt securities issued.
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-MARE  =ARRE -FHE
E=/MA B-f BRf

1 Over Over over EENE Fite
Upto 1monthto  3months  1yearto Over Non-interest ok i
1month  3months  to1year 5 years 5 years bearing Total
ARF TR TER Tix TER TR TER TR
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FoE-ZE+ZA=1-
A As at 31 December 2013
R Assets
NeREHne Cash and short-term funds 3,300,018 1,019,067 7,060,241 - - 376,156 11,755,482
R 8 ROCR Interest and remittance receivables - - - - - 359,404 359,404
fTESBIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 831,426 831,426
RHAR AT Loan portfolio, net 13,334,407 3,579,565 9,674 17,093 1,835 - 16,942,574
AR - Investment securities;
— e — avallable-for-sale 217,074 571,488 1,214,741 938,602 - 918,550 3,860,455
—FAZIH — held-to-maturity 283,205 388,885 1,548,679 2,638,646 3,701,180 - 8,560,595
WEARRR Interests in subsidiaries 5,153,370 23,789 13,262 769 - 103,060 5,294,250
TN FR - L REMA Prepayments, deposits and
other assets - - - - - 16,808 16,808
B 77 Fixed assets - - - - - 44,085 44,085
BRER® Reinsurance assets - - - - - 181,053 181,053
REEE Total assets 22,288,074 5,582,794 9,846,597 3595110 3,703,015 2,830,542 47,846,132
Ak Liabilities
RIfTF]S. Interest payable - - - - - 195,830 195,830
RIFHIKIR ~ AT Accounts payable, accrued
Hi expenses and other liabilities 4,214,241 - - - - 398,487 4,612,728
fTEEBIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 785,458 785,458
LEHRRA G Current income tax liabilities - - - - - 144,665 144,665
TR R Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - - 56,911 56,911
RIE AR Insurance liabilities - - - - - 1,297,034 1,297,034
BRITRSIES Debt securities issued 4910174 9,766,814 4801547 9,349,443 2,527,207 - 31,355,185
AREH Total liabilities 9124415 9,766,814 4,801,547 9,349,443 2,527,207 2,878,385 38,447,811

FEGUBEEROBH* Total interest sensitivity gap* 13,163,659  (4,184,020) 5,045,050  (5,754,333) 1,175,808

FEATETA Interest rate derivatives (notional
(BoERMEYEH)  amounts of net position) (5627,543) (10,982,823) 4,732,875 9,019,265 2,286,526
* RITASTESHTASEEEN * before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments
ERITRSFIEANFIN on the debt securities issued.
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—FUE

BRF
AR Qver RFHE TR
Upto  1monthto 3months 1year to Over  Non-interest
1month to 1year 5Yyears 5 years bearing
REMH BT TR 7T
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FoEF-ZFtoA=t-
=] As at 31 December 2012
e Assets
NeREHRE Cash and short-term funds 1011878 3,528,751 4,989,854 - - 185,061 9,715,544
RIS RCFR Interest and remittance receivables - - - - - 469,590 469,590
{TEEBIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1443013 1443013
AR 5T Loan portfolio, net 24,657,088 1,169,067 36,512 23,99 8,736 - 2589399
IEHRA - Investment securities:
— e — avallable-for-sale 868,060 973,117 653,153 - - 3,318,497 5812827
—HAZIH — held-to-maturity 124,520 8739 1552207 379510 3762772 - 9237808
AR BE R Prepayments, deposits and
AR other assets - - - - - 39,641 39,641
Eh Fixed assets - - - - - 29,128 29,128
BRER® Reinsurance assets - - - - - 222,007 222,007
REBE Total assets 26,661,546 5,709,674 7,231,726 3,783,566 3,771,508 5706937 52,864,957
il Liabilities
RIfTFIS Interest payable - - - - - 235,756 235,756
RIFO83R - RIRTTFcR  Accounts payable, accrued
Hf i expenses and other liabilities 4,200,129 - = = = 264987 4465116
fTESBIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 175,095 175,095
LEBA R Current income tax liabilities - - - - - 101,587 101,587
ARG 7 Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - - 109,404 109,404
RS {5 Insurance liabilities - - - - - 1545803 1545863
BRIRESIER Debt securities issued 5973185 12124522 2136033 12,157,118 4,013,769 - 36,404,627
B RITIRBIL 5 Mortgage-backed securities issued 214,672 - - - - - 214,672
AREH Total liabilities 10,387,986 12,124,522 2136033 12,157,118 4,013,769 2432692 43252120
FEHRERD S5 * Total interest sensitivity gap* 16,273,560 (6,414,848) 5,095,693 (8,373,552) (242,261)
MEATETE Interest rate derivatives (notional
(BoA9MEYEH)  amounts of net position) (8064538  (8973851) 2119000 11,610,162 3280324
* RITASTESRHTASEEXN * before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments

B RITIRSIESFRENA on the debt securities issued.
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—FhE
) ZhfF
AR Qver Qver AENE TR
Upto  1monthto 3 months 1year to Over  Non-interest
1 month 3months t0 1year 5Yyears 5 years bearing Total

YN T BT
The Company HK$'000
FoE-ZFtoA=t-
=] As at 31 December 2012
R Assets
NeRkESERE Cash and short-term funds 899,615 3,515,067 4,989,854 - - 183,807 9,588,343
RIS RLR Interest and remittance receivables - - - - - 460415 460415
fTEeBIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,443013 1,443013
TRAR T Loan portfolio, net 20,713,162 1,169,067 35,680 18,871 7,023 - 21943803
AR - Investment securities:

— e — avallable-for-sale 868,060 973,117 653,153 - - 3,318,497 5,812,827

—HAZIH — held-to-maturity 124,520 38739 1552207 3759570 3762772 - 9237808
HEARRE Interests in subsiciaries 3,838,132 - 810 - 1,667 103060 3943669
AFA - e R Prepayments, deposits and

Hip %7~ other assets 7,984 - - - - 38,536 46,520
BEER” Fixed assets - - - - - 29,11 29,116
BRRA” Reinsurance assets - - - - - 222372 222372
REEE Total assets 26,451,473 5,695,990 7,231,704 3,778 441 3,771,462 5,798,816 52,727,886
il Liabilities
RIfTF|S. Interest payable - - - - - 235,686 235,686
RIFTIKIR ~ RATFFZ R Accounts payable, accrued

Hi expenses and other liabilities 4,410,603 - - - - 21126 4,687,729
fTEeBIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 175,095 175,095
LHFIRA R Current income tax liabilities - - - - - 100,563 100,563
TR R Deferred income tax liabilities - - - = = 109,103 109,103
RIE AR Insurance liabilities - - - - - 1,548,076 1,548,076
BRITRBIES Debt securities issted 5973185 1212452 2136033 12,157,118 4013769 - 36404627
AREH Total liabilities 10,333,783 12,124,522 2,136,033 12,157,118 4,013,769 2,445,649 43,260,879
FIEBRERD B4 Total interest sensitivity gap* 16,067,685  (6428532) 509671  (8378,677) (242,307)
FEATETA Interest rate derivatives (notional

(BoERMEYEH)  amounts of net position) (8064538)  (8973851) 2119000 11610162  3,280324

* RITASTESHTASEEEN * before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments

B RITIRSIEFRIEN on the debt securities issued.
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FHER Sk AR B B ARGE T SR B BTk ER
HREHORE - AEFFTHENR S
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B EAE EFTZ BVR SIRA R ©
AREF MR & R S5 Hll 5512
KEARFHENRGRESR - B0AH
EERATTERNRD R S RIRHET
HE o

@ RIFNASREDH

TRINRAEE T 2 RARE
RraNFHREFRITETR
TR APTMEELEER
TETASRARRASHE
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SHRFANLRE - BFER
ERFHNAEENIHETE
B AR SR A B S R AR ]
HWOTE T A BB A FEEL
B A e HA DA R4 B AL
EHNEME -

() FOTETAIERE

REARKAT

The Group and the Company

F-g-=f As at 31 December 2013
+=B=t-H

il Liabilities

BR{TRSILS

Debt securities issued

3.4. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk of the Group not being able
to repay its payment obligations or to fund committed
purchases of loans. Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring
the actual inflows and outflows of funds on a daily basis and
projecting longer-term inflows and outflows of funds across
a full maturity spectrum. The Group has established
diversified funding sources to support the growth of its
business and the maintenance of a balanced portfolio of
liabilities. Sources of liquidity are regularly reviewed by
ALCO.

(@ Undiscounted cash flows analysis

The tables below present cash flows payable by the
Group under non-derivative financial liabilities,
derivative financial liabilities that will be settled on a
net basis and derivative financial instruments that will
be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual
maturities as at the end of the reporting period. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the projected
contractual undiscounted cash flows including future
interest payments on the basis of their earliest possible
contractual maturity. The Group’s derivatives include
interest rate swaps that will be settled on net basis;
and cross currency swaps that will be settled on gross
basis.

(i) Non-derivative cash outflows
—-MBBE  EABME —F0E

Z=/M 2-F BRE
-MNAR Over Over Over BENE

Upto 1monthto 3 months 1year to Over EE
1month  3months  to1year 5 years 5 years Total
TER THET THT TARL THT THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

(1,617,632)  (2,412,076) (10,961,199) (15,330,240) (2,652,473) (32,973,620)
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—FHE
ESitaa
—MAW Over AFENE
Upto  1monthto 3months 1yearto QOver Bl
1 month 3months to 1year 5 years 5Yyears Total
AEH THT T B THT TET THT
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-%-=% As at 31 December 2012
+-A=1+-H
Rl Liabilities
B ARSI Debt securities issued (684,799 (3590319  (11,609,866)  (18,389,744)  (3,749,700)  (38,024,428)
BRTIRBIEH Mortgage-backed securities
issued (4,284) (210,656) = = = (214,940)

(689,083) (3,800,975  (11,609866)  (18389,744)  (3749,700)  (38,239,368)

—MAR RENE
Upto  1monthto 3months 1year to QOver ki
1 month 3months to 1year 5years 5 years Total
YN BT Titr BT FHT T THT
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
F-5—-% As at 31 December 2012
tZH=t-H
il Liabilities
BRI Deht securities issued (684799) (3590319  (11,609,866)  (18,389,744)  (3,749,700)  (38,024,428)
(i) PTETEALREACR (i)  Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)
)

-MIRE  EARHRE —FH)E
EZ/MA B-F ¥t

-MNAR Over Over over BENE
Upto 1monthto  3months  1yearto Over =17}
1month  3months  to1year 5 years 5 years Total
REARKAR TR THT TR Ti#x THT TR
The Group and the Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-8-=% As at 31 December 2013
+ZA=1+-H
BB ELER Derivative financial
fTESRIS instrument settled:
—RHEE — 0n net basis 913 (1,922) 4,957 (13,055) (10,507) (19,614)
—BHER —0n gross basis
piolirgak| Total outflow (2,213,529)  (1,563,473)  (8,198,304) (6,787,875) (87,128) (18,850,309)
RALH Total inflow 2,255,327 1,588,850 8,359,600 6,240,851 105,417 18,550,045

2,11 23,455 166,253 (560,079) 7,782 (319,878)

168 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2013



—FRE

ESiS
—NEm over  EEMNE
Upto  1monthto 3months 1year to QOver B
Tmonth  3months  to1year 5years 5 years Total
7! A7 T TAT TbT Tz TAT FAL
The Group and the Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-%--% As at 31 December 2012
+-A=+-H
ETIIEEEER Derivative financial
ITEEBIE: instrument settled:
— PR — on net hasis (132) (4,957) (292) (2,087) (148) 7.616)
— BHER — 0n gross basis
et Total outflow (1301920)  (2539.994) (7471516 (9,979,682) - (333119)
FALHR Total inflow 1351759 2585725 7567155 10312,32% - 21816965
9703 40,774 95,347 330,557 (148) 476,233
(i) AEABRINIE (iiiy  Off-balance sheet items
TZE2E-—Z=ZF+=_H There were no financial guarantees of the
=+—H8 AralHE Company as at 31 December 2013. Financial
EEMAMSHEER T guarantees of the Company as at 31 December
T——F+_A=+— 2012 amounting to HK$214,742,000 matured no
B NRE—FKEH later than one year.

B M s HE R L E
214,742,000 7T ©
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(b) ZFHBADH (b)  Maturity analysis
TEREREERARESHEH The table below analyses the assets and liabilities into
A FAERRIIR 52 2 & 7= R relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
T period at the end of the reporting period to the

contractual maturity date.

-MARE EAARE  —FHE
2=/ E-F Z5%
WHES -1MAR Over Over over HEENE

Repayable Upto 1monthto 3months 1yearto Over FRE =%}

ondemand  1month 3 months to1year 5 years 5years  Undated Total

s il TER TER TER TER TER TERT TERT TERL
The Group HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

F-2-=%+-A=+-H Asat31December 2013

i Assets
NeREHRE Cash and short-term funds 375,571 3,302,654 1,019,067 7,060,241 - - - 11,757,533
TRAA Loan portfolio 4,892 383,165 805,824 3,655,439 6,619,437 10,798,613 2,852 22,270,222
EHRR Investment securities
—AfnE — available-for-sale - 217,074 441,488 1,214,741 1,068,602 - 918,550 3,860,455
—RHBEHE — held-to-maturity - 283,205 127,968 1,564,173 2,884,069 3,701,180 - 8,560,595
BRI Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 180742 180,742
380,463 4,186,098 2,394,347 13,494,594 10,572,108 14,499,793 1,102,144 46,629,547
ik Liabilities
RIS 5 Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1294712 1,294,712
BRIREIESH Deht securities issued - 1,584,192 2,267,698 10,576,556 14,399,532 2,527,207 - 31,355,185

- 1,584,192 2,267,698 10,576,556 14,399,532 2,527,207 1,294,712 32,649,897

-MARE EAAME -EHE
2=/ E-F Z1%
HEZE  -1MAR Over Over Over EEHNE

Repayable Upto 1monthto 3months 1yearto Over FRE BE

ondemand  1month 3 months to1year 5 years 5years  Undated Total

ARR ThT ThRT TERL TERL TERL THET THET THET
The Company HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

F-E2-=#+-A=1-H Asat31December 2013

&= Assets

NekESRE Cash and short-term funds 373,520 3,302,654 1,019,067 7,060,241 - - - 11,755,482

e i Loan portfolio 4,648 363,777 766,083 3,476,151 5,633,284 6,697,735 2,191 16,943,869

AR Investment securities

—fEHE — available-for-sale - 217,074 441,488 1,214,741 1,068,602 - 918,550 3,860,455

—RHEZEE — helo-to-maturity - 283,205 127,968 1,564,173 2,884,069 3,701,180 - 8,560,595

BRI Reinsrance assets - - - - - - 181,053 181,053
378,168 4,166,710 2,354,606 13,315,306 9,585,955 10,398,915 1,101,794 41,301,454

ik Liabilities

REH 5 Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1,297,034 1,297,034

BR{TfSIES Debt securities issued - 1,584,192 2,267,698 10,576,556 14,399,532 2,527,207 - 31,355,185

- 1,584,192 2,267,698 10,576,556 14,399,532 2,527,207 1,297,034 32,652,219
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i N Over AERE
Repayable Upto 1monthto  3months  1yearto Over

on demand Tmonth  3months  to1year 5years 5 years Undat
N B T#n BT T T ; T
The Group HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-F——F+-A=t—H Asat31December 2012

#i= Assets
NeRESHRS Cash and short-term funds 18588 1,011,053 3528751 4,989,854 - - - 9715544
REAR Loan portfolio 7,530 560,714 400245 2365120 11,967,442 10,595,458 2942 25,899,451
EHRR Investment securities
—AfHE — avallable-for-sale - 868060 678912 947,358 - - 3318497 5812827
—HBEHE — held-to-maturity - 124,520 - 1575497 3775019 3762772 - 9237808
BRI Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 20007 222,007
193416 2564347 4607908 9877829 15742461 14358230 3543446 50,887,637
Sk Liabilities
RIEAIGR Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1545863 1545863
BAIREIEH Debt securities issued - 642,467 3423461 11,109,164  17,215766 4,013,769 - 36,404,627
ERITRIBIES Mortgage-backed securities issued - 4,198 210,474 - - - - 214,672

= 646665 3633935 11,109,164 17215766 4013769 1545863 38,165,162

t —FpF
=1 F Eik:a
MeEE  —MAR Over Over Over R&EKNE

Repayable Upto Tmonthto  3months  1yearto QOver TR

on demand Imonth ~ 3months  to1year 5years 5years  Undated

YN TAT TEL ThL 7 8 : Thx
The Company HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

F-E——&+-A=1+—H Asat31December 2012

= Assets
NeREHRE Cash and short-term funds 180,602 902820 3515067 4,989,854 - - - 9588343
RHEE Loan portfolio 7,038 546,386 370268 2229903 11224860 7,566,496 2882 219472833
IEFRR Investment securities
—AfE — avallable-for-sale - 868060 678912 94738 - - 3318497 5812827
—RHEZHH — held-to-maturity - 12450 - 55497 3775019 3762772 - 9237808
BRIERE Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 22372 22372
187,640 2441786 4564247 9742612 14999879 11329268 3543751 46,809,183
il Liabilities
MR Other payable - 12318 198,15 - - - - 210474
R R Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1548076 1548076
BRIRKIES Debt securities issued = 642,467 3423461 11,109,164 17,215,766 4,013,769 - 36404627

= 604,785 3621617 11,109,164 17215766 4013769 1548076 38,163,177

EBRBIFARATE —E—=FF% 171



SREMEIREKME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

172

Bk LR sk - R B ROCEK
FERS™  MARMEEMF
o AR BRI -
%  SEERFEEXE
B B fon B =5 B AR I S o - TR
BEZHRHALITH 12 AR
WmE sk =k o MAEM S IRRE
FYEL AR = AT - TR
EHRBERETFEZa12MNAS
sEE AL -

SRS - SN E & #IE B S AR
= BT % HE A 78 & ] 42 (£ 30012
BILEIER - XN LHEAR
SRR BEF IR MRIF
FREEZ BEMEBRMET
REEBRITREBNES -

3.5. {REEREE

ARERARE BRI F BIZBRE -
NIART AR HIRIB IR © BEETS
BN R AR S B = AR 3R B BT
K2 Wl ) 1B #925%-30% * HEdHE H
R RS NEL RS
90% sk iz L at AT ds E M E AR
Hil o NERF IRFLIAAIHLAIL FEBH
R RIEETELERER - RES
75 50%-70% B9 7 &5 AR IR [E LA K&
BUARTHLAA TR EIRE - AE=E
Pl VERBIR - RAREIRE ©

EfIREE & L9R) X B 7 EIRAREF MK
ERRIREME RSB RSN T
WEMN - RIERR S DRSO E
thZE X BREAL - Hih ARELT ©

3.5.

Apart from the above, interest and remittance
receivables, assets held for sale, prepayments and
other assets, interest payable, accounts payable,
accrued expenses, liabilities directly associated with
assets held for sale and current income tax liabilities
are expected to be recovered or settled within twelve
months from the reporting date. Other assets and
liabilities included in the statement of financial position
are expected to be recovered or settled in a period
more than twelve months after the reporting date.

In addition, the Exchange Fund has committed to
providing the Group with a HK$30 billion revolving
credit under the Revolving Credit Facility. The Facility
enables the Group to maintain smooth operation under
exceptional circumstances, so that it can better fulfil its
mandate to promote banking and financial stability in
Hong Kong.

Insurance risk

The main insurance business of the Group is the mortgage
insurance which provides cover to the Als for first credit
losses of up to 25%-30% of the property value of a
residential mortgage loan with loan-to-value ratio below 90%
at origination, or other thresholds as specified from time to
time. The Group also provides financial guarantee cover to
Als up to 50%-70% of the banking facilities granted to SMES
and non-listed enterprises in Hong Kong and insurance cover
to Als in respect of reverse mortgage loans originated by
such Als and secured on residential properties.

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility
that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the
amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an
insurance contract, this risk is random and therefore
unpredictable.
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For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of
probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the principal
risk that the Group faces under its insurance contracts is that
the actual claims exceed the carrying amount of the
insurance liabilities. This could occur because the frequency
or severity of claims are greater than estimated. Insurance
events are random and the actual number and amount of
claims and benefits will vary from year to year from the
estimate established using statistical techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar
insurance contracts, the smaller the relative variability about
the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified
portfolio is less likely to be affected across the board by a
change in any subset of the portfolio. The Group has
developed a business strategy to diversify the type of
insurance risks accepted and within each of the key
categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of risks
to reduce the variability of the expected outcome.

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by
several factors. The most significant are a downturn of the
economy, a slump in the local property market and a low
mortality rate of borrowers. Economic downturn, which may
cause a rise in defaulted payment, affects the frequency of
claims and collateral value. A drop in property prices, where
the collateral value falls below the outstanding balance of
the mortgage loan, will increase the severity of claims. Low
mortality rate of borrowers means longer payout period and
larger loan balance will be over time. This will affect the
frequency and severity of claims as there is a risk of the
property value insufficient to cover the outstanding loan
balance in the future.
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The Group manages these risks by adopting a set of prudent
insurance eligibility criteria. To ensure sufficient provision is
set aside for meeting future claim payments, the Group
calculates technical reserves on prudent liability valuation
assumptions and the method prescribed in the regulatory
guidelines. The Group also takes out quota-share
reinsurance from its approved mortgage reinsurers and
excess-of-loss reinsurance arrangement in an effort to limit
its risk exposure under the mortgage insurance business.
The Group conducts comprehensive assessment including
the financial strength and credit ratings of the mortgage
reinsurers in accordance with the approved selection
framework set by the Credit Committee. The approved
mortgage reinsurers are subject to periodic reviews. For
financial guarantee cover provided to Als, the Group relies
on the lenders’ prudent credit assessment on the borrowers
to mitigate default risk and any loss in the loan facility will be
shared proportionately between the Group and the lender on
a pari passu basis to minimise moral hazards. The mortality
assumptions of reverse mortgages are also reviewed on a
regular basis, to assess the risk of larger deviation between
the actual and expected operating results.

As at 31 December 2013, if combined ratio had increased by
1%, profit for the year would have been HK$4 million (2012:
HK$4 million) lower. If combined ratio had decreased by 1%,
profit for the year would have been HK$4 million (2012: HK$4
million) higher.
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Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
(@) Fair value estimation

The following table shows financial instruments
recognised at fair value, by valuation method. The
different levels of fair value hierarchy have been
defined as follows:

o Quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (“Level 17);

. Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived
from prices) (“Level 2"); and

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs)
(“Level 3").

Bl -
REARKAT i AR
The Group and the Company The Group and the Company
F-E-=%+-A=+-H F-F-—-5+-A=1-H
As at 31 December 2013 As at 31 December 2012
#-F 2-R B& B £ B4
Level 1 Level 2 Total Level 1 Level 2 Total
TiEn TiEL TER T THT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
"= Assets
TESBTA Derivative financial instruments - 831,426 831,426 - 1,443,013 1,443,013
EHETH Available-for-sale securities
— RFIEH — Debt securities 1,228,043 1,713,862 2,941,905 923,153 1571177 2494330
— Al — Other securities 918,550 - 918,550 3,318,497 - 3318497
2,146,593 2,545,288 4,691,881 4,241,650 3,014,190 7,255,840
Afk Liabilities
TEERIE Derivative financial instruments - 785,458 785,458 - 175,095 175,095
ThHIARTEE A Debt securities issued
AFETHITARE  designated as at fair value
MERTHRSTESR through profit or 10ss upon
initial recognition - 325,002 325,002 - 340,287 340,287
- 1,110,460 1,110,460 = 515,382 515,382
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No financial instrument was measured at fair value
using a valuation technique not supported by
observable market data (Level 3) as at 31 December
2013 and 31 December 2012.

There was no transfer between Levels 1 and 2 during
the year.

(i) Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the reporting date. A market is regarded as
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an
arm’s length basis. If an asset or a liability
measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask
price, the price within the bid-ask spread that is
most representative of fair value in the
circumstances shall be used to measure fair
value. These instruments are included in Level 1.

(i) Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market is determined by
using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as little
as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in Level 2.
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If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in Level 3.

Level 2 derivatives comprise interest rate swaps
and currency swaps. These swaps are fair valued
using forward interests rates and forward
exchange rates, if applicable, from observable
yield curves.

Level 2 debt securities are fair valued using
quoted market prices in less active markets, or if
not available, a discounted cash flow approach,
which discounts the contractual cash flows using
discount rates derived from observable market
prices of other quoted debt instruments of the
counterparties.
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(b) HIEUATFEITENSREE (b) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities not

MR measured at fair value

FZE2—=%F+=A=+—H The carrying amounts of the Group's financial
FZFE——F+ZA=+— instruments not presented on the Group’s statement
H - RNEFAHERTWSHKRAE of financial position at their fair values are not
BAFEEHREINCHIAD materially different from their fair values as at 31
KHESAFEHEEERD December 2013 and 31 December 2012 except for the
A BREKEBESAFEES following financial instruments, for which their carrying
WemIAEN - TRAEAR amounts and fair values and the level of fair value
FEITEMNE/RIAZIKA hierarchy are disclosed below:

- ATERATER -

F-2-=£+-A=t-A F=F——FtA=t-H
As at 31 December 2013 As at 31 December 2012

L DY Tk E(E NFHE

carrying Fair #-F £ZR carrying Fair
amount value Level 1 Level 2 Amount value

ThRx TERL Thn THEx Thx TAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

SRR Financial assets
AR Investment securities
—HEEIE — held-to-maturity 8,560,595 8,699,613 5,660,486 3,039,127 9,237,808 9,748 368
SRAK Financial liabilities
BAIRSIES Debt securities issued 31,030,183 31,030,855 - 31,030,855 36,064,340 36,067,827
BRITRIEE S Mortgage-backed securities
issued - - - - 214,672 214243
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The following methods and significant assumptions
have been used to estimate the fair values of financial
instruments:

(i)

(iif)

Cash and short-term funds

Cash and short-term funds include bank deposits.
The fair value of floating-rate deposits is the
carrying amount. The estimated fair value of
fixed-rate deposits, which are normally less than
3 months, is based on discounted cash flows
using prevailing money-market interest rates for
debts with similar credit risk and remaining
maturity. Therefore, the fair value of the deposits
is approximately equal to their carrying value.

Loan portfolio, net

Loan portfolio is stated net of impairment
allowance. An insignificant portion of loan
portfolio bears interest at fixed rate. Therefore,
the carrying value of loan portfolio is a
reasonable estimate of the fair value.

Investment securities — held-to-maturity

Fair value for held-to-maturity assets is based on
market prices or broker/dealer price guotations.
Where this information is not available, fair value
has been estimated using quoted market prices
for securities with similar credit, maturity and
yield characteristics.

Debt securities issued

The aggregate fair values are calculated based
on quoted market prices. For those notes where
quoted market prices are not available, a
discounted cash flow model is used based on a
current yield curve appropriate for the remaining
term to maturity.

EBRBIFARLTE —FE—=FF% 179



SREMEIREKME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

180

V)  REZBIESEITHR
TTHIRIBIE 5

N ESFIDET M
WNITE-ETRED
IR BB NEHE
T 2 5 5 6 R B R B9
AT e am = i £ HF R A
NeREMIREITE -

(Vi)  EfERG — s

HmfmiE -T2 =4
T AR—_EENFE—
B EBEBENITHRXK
15 (B RF ) T 3K 9 12 48 Bx
RN 58 {3 BT 22 HE A 3 3T
R HAFESKE
BEEE -
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(v) Mortgage-backed securities issued under the
MBS Programme

The aggregate fair values are calculated based
on quoted market prices. For those notes where
quoted market prices are not available, a
discounted cash flow model is used based on a
current yield curve appropriate for the remaining
term to maturity.

(vi) Other liabilities — deferred consideration

These represent the deferred consideration used
for credit enhancement on the mortgage loans
purchased from the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region (the
Government) in December 2003 and January
2004 with the fair value approximating the
carrying amount.

3.7. Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital, which is a
broader concept than the ‘equity’ on the face of the
statement of financial position, are:

o To comply with the capital requirements set by the
Financial Secretary of the Government (Financial
Secretary);

o To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders;

o To support the Group’s stability and growth;
° To allocate capital in an efficient and risk based
approach to optimise risk adjusted return to the

shareholders; and

o To maintain a strong capital base to support the
development of its business.
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Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are
monitored daily by the Group’s management in accordance
with the Guidelines on the Capital Adequacy Ratio
(“Guidelines”) issued by the Financial Secretary, by
reference largely to Basel Il risk-based capital adequacy
framework. The minimum Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR)
stipulated in the Guidelines is 8%.

The Chief Executive Officer is required to submit a report to
the Board of Directors on a guarterly basis by reference to
the Guidelines issued by the Financial Secretary. Any breach
or likely breach of the Guidelines must be reported to the
Financial Secretary. During the year, the Group complied
with all of the capital requirement set out in the Guidelines
by the Financial Secretary.

The table below summarises the composition of capital base
and the CAR of the Group as at the end of the reporting
period.

R Share capital 2,000,000 2,000,000
{RE8 4 7l Retained profits 4,548,760 5,302,410
MBS i & Contingency reserve 1,213,827 977,773
HiE& Other reserves 169,775 316,484
eI B N Non-controlling interests 12,972 12,423
LAEA TG ST ZOREFRTE  Allowance for loan impairment under

2 collective assessment 1,825 4,052
kR (46,560) (20,122)
B EAN Total capital base 7,900,599 8,593,020
RARTE B E Capital Adequacy Ratio 21% 20.2%
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3.8. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
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The Group enters into International Swap Dealers Association
master agreement with all counterparties for derivative
transactions where each party will be able to settle all
outstanding amounts on a net basis in the event of default of
the other party. The Group does not enter into other master
netting arrangement or similar agreements for derivative
transactions.

The disclosures set out in the tables below pertain to
financial assets and financial liabilities that are not offset in
the Group's statement of financial position but are subject to
enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement that covers similar financial instruments. The
disclosures enable the understanding of both the gross and
net amounts, as well as provide additional information on
how such credit risk is mitigated.

REARKAR N
The Group and the Company ( the Company

F-E-=%+-A=+-H F-F-——%+-A=1-H
As at 31 December 2013 As at 31 December 2012

BxEXEK
EMERRE
HERRE  WEHLE I x X%
MK E{E Related AfE Related
Carrying amount not Carrying ~ amount not
amounts set off amount set off
on the in the onthe inthe
statement  statement 8> statement  Statement A
of financial  of financial Net  offinancial  of financial Net
position position? amount* position position* amount*
T#x THT TR THT TEL THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

SRRF Financial assets
Emimeep I ANTE Positive fair values for financial

derivatives 831,426 (175,080) 656,346 1443013 (54,836) 1,388,177
SRAR Financial liabilities

HETESBIANTE  Negative fair values for financial

derivatives

785,458 (175,080) 610,378 175,095 (64,836) 120,259

# [HEREFREMSRARTHENE

T ERAFAE DL H A
ARNESRAAR, A= -

* AR S WA E N UREOULH PR
RS AT TR - EHERE
HMRZ SN FEL  HIORBAEEDN
SEAG R SARRRAEIIH o

# Amounts under “Related amount not set off in the statement of
financial position” represent the amounts of financial liabilities/assets
position that are subject to netting agreement or similar arrangements.

* Net amount represents financial assets/liabilities that are subject to
netting agreement or similar arrangements but the Group’s
counterparty does not have equivalent financial liabilities/assets
position with the Group to offset upon default.
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4.1.

4.2.
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Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

4.1.

4.2.

Impairment allowances on loan portfolio

The Group reviews its loan portfolio to assess impairment at
least on a quarterly basis. In determining whether an
impairment loss should be recorded in the income
statement, the Group makes judgements as to whether there
is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio
of loans before the decrease can be identified with an
individual loan in that portfolio. This evidence may include
observable data indicating that there has been an adverse
change in the payment status of borrowers in a group or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in
the group. Management uses estimates based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics and
objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the
portfolio when scheduling its future cash flows. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the
amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates
and actual loss experience.

Fair value of derivatives

The fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted in
active markets are determined by using valuation
techniques. Where valuation techniques (for example,
models) are used to determine fair value, they are validated
and periodically reviewed by qualified personnel
independent of the area that created them. All models are
validated before they are used, and models are calibrated to
ensure that outputs reflect actual data and comparative
market prices. To the extent practical, models use only
observable data. Sensitivity analysis is set out in Note 3.3.
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4.4,

4.5.
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4.3.

4.4,

4.5.

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The Group determines that available-for-sale investments
are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value below its cost. This determination of
what is significant or prolonged requires judgement. In
making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among other
factors, the normal volatility in listed price. In addition,
impairment may be appropriate when there is evidence of
deterioration in the financial health of the investment,
industry and sector performance, changes in technology,
and operational and financing cash flows.

Held-to-maturity investments

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on classifying
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This
classification requires significant judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates its intention and ability to
hold such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to keep
these investments to maturity other than for the specific
circumstances defined in HKAS 39 such as due to significant
deterioration of such investments or selling close to maturity,
it will be required to reclassify the entire class as available-
for-sale and measured at fair value, not amortised cost.

Profits tax

The Group is mainly subject to profits tax in Hong Kong.
Significant estimates are required in determining the
provision for profits tax. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
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Segment analysis

The Group is principally engaged in mortgage business. Other
activities such as debt issuance to fund the mortgage purchase
and investment to reinvest the surplus funds from mortgage
receipt are considered ancillary to mortgage business. The Group
is also organised in such a way that performance is measured at
Group level in a single segment for mortgage business.

Although the mortgage business is managed as a single segment,
the mortgage business is located in three geographical areas,
namely Hong Kong, Korea and China. The segment for Hong Kong
includes mainly the mortgage business in Hong Kong. The segment
outside Hong Kong includes mortgage assets in Korea, and an
investment in a subsidiary in Shenzhen, China. The chief operating

decision maker assesses the performance based on geographical

segments.
TRENZEHEHWE  B5F REME The following tables represent revenue, profit and other
o information for operating segments of the Group.

FB LI
&8 outside =% il

Hong Kong  Hong Kong Total
FER FTEx FER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Bz —= Year ended 31 December 2013
+ZA=+—HIEE

A BHA Interest income 840,807 61,439 902,246
MBS H Interest expense (230,306) (19,947) (250,253)
R B U Net interest income 610,501 41,492 651,993
R HEIR #2 2N Net premiums earned 476,956 - 476,956
H Al A Other income 307,707 (10,237) 297,470
KZKEWA Operating income 1,395,164 31,255 1,426,419
FRR[EK 2H Net claims written back 8,767 - 8,767
HeZ 2 Net commission expenses (135,890) - (135,890)
REYH Operating expenses (227,948) (7,095) (235,043)
RITBERT R B Tl Operating profit before impairment 1,040,093 24,160 1,064,253
TIFOREE K Write-back of loan impairment

allowances 3,545 - 3,545
BR 5 B8 A Profit before taxation 1,043,638 24,160 1,067,798
I Taxation (85,214)
NEE A Profit for the year 982,584
FRRATF Capital expenditure during the year 32,720 - 32,720
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Hong Kong
FAT
HK$'000

BBLAGN
Qutside
Hong Kong
FHET
HK$'000

Total
FH&T
HK$'000

BE-_Z——&F Year ended 31 December 2012
+TZA=+—RLFE

2 U A Interest income 1,019,858 115,504 1,135,362
MESH Interest expense (284,103) (39,160) (323,263)
BN Net interest income 735,755 76,344 812,099
B AR ER 2 A Net premiums earned 533,536 = 533,536
E YA Other income 234,850 (2,379) 232,471
KZXEWA Operating income 1,504,141 73,965 1,578,106
FR R [0 1% 50 Net claims written back 6,642 = 6,642
B& > 55 Net commission expenses (162,541) = (162,541)
ZETH Operating expenses (204,045) (15,222) (219,267)
RITBERT AL S T Operating profit before impairment 1,144,197 58,743 1,202,940
DIFORE L % Write-back of loan impairment

allowances 5,680 - 5,680
VESER =R ANl Share of profit of a joint venture - 2,450 2,450
& B B0 s A Profit before taxation 1,149,877 61,193 1,211,070
T 150 Taxation (85,524)
INE Profit for the year 1,125,546
FRNRATFZ Capital expenditure during the year 11,982 - 11,982

58

Hong Kong

FERT
HK$'000

FE L
Outside
Hong Kong
FHE T
HK$'000

F=B-—=F As at 31 December 2013

+=ZA=+—H
PRE T Segment assets 45,624,944 2,394,886 48,019,830
DRGR Segment liabilities 36,180,487 2,265,163 38,445,650

)

Hong Kong
FAT
HK$'000

BBLAGN
Qutside
Hong Kong
FET
HK$'000

Total
T TT
HK$'000

F—F—=—4F As at 31 December 2012

+=—R=+—H
PERE T Segment assets 48,366,698 4,498,259 52,864,957
DR Segment liabilities 38,878,093 4,374,027 43,252,120
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6. FIBUCA 6. Interestincome

REH
The Group
2013 2012
F#&xT FHIT
HK$’'000 HK$'000
WA E Loan portfolio 428,498 584,044
& MEHRS Cash and short-term funds 139,153 213,263
AR — Em Investment securities — listed 206,139 203,331
AR —FEm Investment securities — unlisted 128,456 134,724
902,246 1,135,362
7. FEXH 7. Interest expense

AEH
The Group

2013
THT
HK$'000

MT RAENBIHRELIRITHIE - Bank loans, debt and MBS issued

B AT RIRIBIE 5 wholly repayable within 5 years 238,945 305,913

BATRENBHELRNE 57T  Debt issued not wholly repayable
RSB within 5 years 11,308 17,350
250,253 323,263

AEERELZHBIE249ZET(ZF—= Included within interest expenses are HK$249 million (2012:
F 3218 7m) HEALNFEZHIT A= HK$321 million) for financial liabilities that are not at fair value

BEmAGE - through profit or loss.
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8. IRIBIREKZIBELZHYZSIK 8. Revenue account for mortgage insurance and
guarantee business

AREH
The Group
2013 2012
F#&x TFETT
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FARFE (F)E (@) FFTE 29(a)) Gross premiums written
(Note (a) and Note 29(a)) 318,053 556,885
BREARZE (F1)E29()) Reinsurance premiums (Note 29(a)) (43,414) (112,347)
RE& Z238m (Ff)E 29(a)) Net premiums written (Note 29(a)) 274,639 444,538
ROFERIR 28 B9 Rk D2 A Decrease in unearned premiums, net 202,317 88,998
B AR 2 E ()£ 29()) Net premiums earned (Note 29(a)) 476,956 533,536
AR E 250 (FfE 29(0) Net claims written back (Note 29(b)) 8,767 6,642
K REEHBRE 2 Net premiums earned after provisions 485,723 540,178
g commission expenses (154,125) (188,910)
BREARNASSH Reinsurers’ share of commission
expenses 18,235 26,369
ez Net commission expenses (135,890) (162,541)
HBRERTZ R E Net premiums earned before
IREE2H management expenses 349,833 377,637
BRI (HF D) Management expenses (Note (b)) (47,040) (26,450)
AR S Underwriting gains 302,793 351,187
B - Notes:
(@) ERTEERBRBERAELS - NEEOkRE (@) Gross premiums were mainly derived from mortgage insurance cover on
RN KRR ET R R R ERE R T ER mortgage loans with a small portion of guarantee fees written from guarantee
IR ST © business on loans to SMEs and non-listed enterprises and premiums written

from mortgage insurance cover on reverse mortgage loans.

(b) EEAZAMEI0LREZEMN—&5 - (b) Management expenses formed part of the operating expenses in Note 10.
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Ha g\ 9. Otherincome

AR
The Group
2013 2012
FE T FHET
HK$’'000 HK$'000
IREANE B RS EAST Early prepayment fees and late charges 2,362 5,059
SCHZER Exchange difference 72,320 29,937
ST EANFERZ) M Net change in fair value of financial
instruments (384) 12,850
ATt & _ETIRR B AR B Dividend income from available-for-sale
listed investments 89,077 90,135
B ER R 2 (FHE12) Net gains on disposal of investments
(Note 12) 135,737 90,260
HEESRQ TR K Gain on disposal of investment in a
joint venture - 7,137
HAftb Others (1,642) (2,907)
297,470 232,471
TRTAAFERHEE TA TSI L Change in fair value of financial instruments represented the
M:OEENAFEN AN FTAERTF aggregate of (i) HK$1,188 million fair value loss on hedging
BESHR1.8BUZBIL(ZE—ZF 1 1.7/ instruments designated as fair value hedge (2012: HK$170 million)
TC) R AR I B A FEWE 11.9712%8 T and HK$1,197 million fair value gain on the hedged items (2012:
—E——F 181ZBx)  RITFE HK$181 million); and (ii) HK$37 million fair value loss on derivatives
KANASIT A ENTETAATFESHR not qualified as hedges for accounting purposes (2012: HK$7
3,700 38 L (=F— =4 : Wz57007 78 7T) million gain) and HK$28 million fair value gain on debt securities
MEEARNFEZHMITARENE X1T7H issued designated as at fair value through profit or loss (2012:
FIUEHF N FERZ280FETL(ZFE—= HK$5 million loss).

£ SH5007ETT) o
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10. £EXH 10. Operating expenses
REH
The Group
2013 2012
THET FETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
B AR Staff costs
e MaF Salaries and benefits 135,476 135,497
RIRE A — FEHFT L Pension costs — defined contribution
plans 8,255 7,458
DIYNES Premises
e Rental 25,183 19,618
Hfth Others 13,472 8,747
EEME Directors’ emoluments - -
718 (HE 26) Depreciation (Note 26) 17,763 14,127
W2 & RS Financial information services 6,029 5,756
JBit (7] 2% Consultancy fees 8,575 7,547
EMZELH Other operating expenses 20,290 20,517
235,043 219,267
1. ZEHENE 11. Auditor’s remuneration
REH
The Group
2013 2012
THET FHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R ES Audit services 1,404 1,366
H MRS Other services 1,132 433
2,536 1,799
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12. HERFRRRFE 12. Net gains on disposal of investments

ZREE A
The Group
2013 2012
F#&xT FAETT
HK$’'000 HK$'000
HER TR S Net gains on disposal of investments:
—ZIANF—H—HETHEZENR — realisation of amounts recognised in
TIA A SR (FR)E 33) reserves up to 1 January (Note 33) 295,593 38,230
— REZFA(TR),/WzE A% — net (losses)/gains arising in
current year (159,856) 52,030
135,737 90,260
13. ERBIEEA 13. Write-back of loan impairment allowances
R EE A
The Group
2013
F#&T
HK$'000
DIRUBEE % Write-back of loan impairment allowances
— BETE (FE21(0)) — collective assessment (Note 21 (b)) 3,545 5,680

EBIRBITEARAT —T—=#% 191



SREMEIREKME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14. BiIn 14. Taxation

(a) FHREWBERNIMRMIBINA : (a) Taxation charge in the consolidated income
statement represents:

P i
The Group
2013 2012
F#ET FATT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BBERER Hong Kong profits tax
— HEAATE R — Current income tax 82,715 81,940
— JEFERE — Adjustment in respect of prior years (11) (14)
82,704 81,926
78 AN I Taxation outside Hong Kong
— HHAFEH — Current income tax 554 521
12 FE A 1L Deferred taxation
— RFEFEX M — Charge for current year 1,956 3,077
85,214 85,524
LA E 7 A R Al U AR B AR Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
16.5%( —F — —4F : 16.5%) B Fi X (2012: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.
ITRBBMNEHKE - W TEEBI For subsidiary operating outside Hong Kong, tax rate
INRERMB AR @ 2RFTEERE prevailing in the relevant country is used. Deferred taxation
BE TR RITE o 3 TR A & is calculated in full on temporary differences under the
EIR165% (= F — ZF : 16.5%) 1Y liability method using a principal taxation rate of 16.5% (2012:
FERERITE S INER ZH - 16.5%).
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REFNB B IR AORASRAE
BRETEORELLTMERNT

The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
taxation rate of Hong Kong as follows:

IREEH
The Group
2013
FHExT
HK$'000
R 35 A1 g A Profit before taxation 1,067,798 1,211,070
1£16.5% (—ZZF—_% : 16.5%) Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5%
BRI E (2012:16.5%) 176,187 199,827
SR Tax effect of:
— NAERAAEA — share of profit of a joint venture - (404)
— BN RIFL R — different tax rate outside
Hong Kong 166 183
— IR HA — income not subject to taxation (105,608) (135,314)
— N HIFAFF — expenses not deductible for
taxation purposes 14,480 21,246
— JEFEIREE — adjustment in respect of prior years (11) (14)
I Taxation charge 85,214 85,524

(b) WMZRRARABIBIIRER

(b)

Provision for taxation in the statement of financial
position represents:

FEH
The Group

RAF

The Company
2013
THET
HK$'000

2012
TAET
HK$'000

2013
TERT
HK$'000

2012
TET
HK$'000

SR current income tax assets
(BT TEMZE~]A) (included in "Other assets”) 1,222 - - =
HHERFH IS R Current income tax liabilities 144,665 101,587 144,665 100,563
1% R I 4 R Deferred income tax liabilities 57,156 109,404 56,911 109,103
201,821 210,991 201,576 209,666

F-E-=F+-A=+-AR=-%F
——#+=A=+—A BREFE

RARIR Zb TR °

There was no significant unprovided deferred taxation as at
31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012.
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BIEFLI CR =),/ R A E B4R EP The major components of deferred income tax (assets)/
D REFNZBZHEAT - liabilities and the movements during the year are as follows:
REMR
. TheGow
HERE
MEBGUIE  Impairment
Accelerated  allowances AETE) REFRF
tax and Fair value Cash flow B
depreciation provisions changes hedges Total
THL THL THBT THL THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-E--F-f—H As at 1 January 2012 5,046 (9,468) 59,711 2.617) 52,672
TR RNk Charged to the income statement 19 3,058 = - 3,077
Fixzmmk (H33)  Charged to equity (Note 33) = = 52,748 907 53,655
F-F--F As at 31 December 2012
+-A=1+-8 5,065 (6,410) 112,459 (1,710) 109,404
Tz Rk Charged to the income statement 403 1,553 = - 1,956
THEERING (H5533)  Charged to equity (Note 33) - = (54,908) 704 (54,204)
F-g-=F As at 31 December 2013
+ZA=1+-H 5,468 (4,857) 57,551 (1,006) 57,156
UG
The Company
AERE
MEBGURIE  Impairment
Accelerated  allowances DAYEEH &R
tax and Fair value Cash flow B
depreciation provisions changes hedges Total
B T THTL AL THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FT-F-—EFE-—H-H As at 1 January 2012 5,046 (9,444) 59,711 2.617) 52,696
FlhaRmink Charged to the income statement 19 2733 = - 2,752
TN (M5£33)  Charged to equity (Note 33) - - 52,748 907 53,655
F-F——F As at 31 December 2012
+-A=1+-H 5,065 (6,711) 112,459 (1,710) 109,103
TihER NNk Charged to the income statement 403 1,609 - - 2,012
THEERING (5533)  Charged to equity (Note 33) - = (54,908) 704 (54,204)
F-g-=F As at 31 December 2013
+ZA=1-H 5,468 (5,102) 57,551 (1,006) 56,911
TH=ZNAW - EEREREER I There is no significant amount of deferred income tax assets/
B/ R B W E, LA e liabilities to be settled within 12 months.
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15. REFEHF 15. Profit for the year

XA aMISHEREAEAERFE & The profit for the year is dealt with in the financial statements of
F 59956,250,0005 T( = F — = £F: the Company to the extent of HK$956,250,000 (2012:
1,097,537,000/&7T) ° HK$1,097,537,000).

16. &8 16. Dividends

NN
The Company

2013 2012
TR TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000

BUR A% 2 A% 8 A% 0.25 7 7t Proposed ordinary dividend of HK$0.25

ZE——F :0375%7T) (2012: HK$0.375) per ordinary share 500,000 750,000
BORERIRR 2 G @mAZ0.58 7T Proposed special dividend of HK$0.5
(Z=——F: T) (2012: nil) per ordinary share 1,000,000 -
1,500,000 750,000
F_E—=FN_F——_FEMNH=E The dividends paid in 2013 and 2012 in respect of 2012 and 2011
——EN—E——FEERESRINT5ZE were HK$750 million (HK$0.375 per ordinary share) and HK$350
7T (G Mm% 03758 L) 3525 T (& million (HK$0.175 per ordinary share) respectively. The directors
AR @A%0.1758 L) e T=ZZ —WMF M A proposed, in respect of 2013, an ordinary dividend of HK$0.25 per
+tH EFEWRA-_ZE—=FLEKRE ordinary share and a special dividend HK$0.5 per ordinary share
7 H% 2 5E AR 0.25 7 7T A4S B RS B A AR ) on 7 April 2014. The proposed dividends are not reflected as
fRO5ETT - HEKERER B - HURAR dividend payables until approval by shareholders.

BN ARMAE

17. BERFBHES 17. Cash and short-term funds
A EH ¥ NG
The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
THERT FHETT FHER FHETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RO & Cash at banks 375,571 185,886 373,520 180,602
BITERTER Time deposits with banks 11,381,962 9529658 11,381,962 9,407,741

11,757,533 9,715,544 11,755,482 9,588,343
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pIeRERMNS AL RERISIME For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
BEATERZHHEIT=1NANEHHN equivalents comprise the following balances with less than three
ik o months" maturity from the date of transaction.
AREH KAF
The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
FTEx FHET TET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RTIE Cash at banks 375,571 185,886 373,520 180,602
RITEHFE Time deposits with banks 1,443,654 1,018,243 1,443,654 896,326
N& kERIN ST B Cash and cash equivalents 1,819,225 1,204,129 1,817,174 1,076,928
F_E—=F+_A=+—HBHUEEE Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2013 included
EINEME @ BRFEEFRPDEEEBERITL guarantee fee of HK$309,333,000 (2012: HK$140,241,000) received
T B 55 Al AL B e P Uk B A9 1B IR 3R under the special concessionary measures of the SME Financing
309,333,000 75 (=& — =4 : 140,241,000 Guarantee Scheme (Note 28).

7B 7T) (FE28) -

18. R FI .2 RiCRR 18. Interest and remittance receivables
ARE A b NG|
The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
LA T &35 6 5 U 1) 22, Interest receivable from
— FEBHE S — interest rate swap contracts 178,665 223,426 178,665 223,426
—IEFRA — investment securities 87,611 99,950 87,611 99,950
— RITEHER — time deposits with banks 18,414 20,857 18,414 20,146
TRAE KRR B & Interest receivable and
7 B3R instalments, in transit from
loan portfolio 84,110 125,357 74,714 116,893

368,800 469,590 359,404 460,415
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19.

wEA-

NEAREBTIETETINBE
ERIES B HTE S TPA 7mw

ERAEREGERLBNRE o
%BI\T:J::%?—Eiﬂ—fﬂTtt/&)ﬁ

/\*jj
—mE-—HAZ+TMARK -

KE
2ER
HE
/mﬂ”,l
SREMABRBER AR R = MAGK
ER= - BMHELHE T =

19. Assets held for sale

HK$'000

AEH
The Group

2013
FB

In the light of the need for the Group to focus on the Hong Kong
market, the Group intended to phase out its subsidiary, Bauhinia
HKMC Corporation Limited (‘BHKMC"). The assets and liabilities of
the BHKMC were classified as held for sale following regulatory
approval in December 2013. The Group completed the sale of all
its equity in the BHKMC on 24 January 2014.

2012

TET
HK$'000

() FFERF~ (a) Assets held for sale:
NekEHRe Cash and short-term funds 129,342 =
R U B K EAth R = Interest receivables and other assets 425 =
RYNZR G R E /R ER Total assets of the BHKMC
EBE/ATE@IF%%E 129,767 =
b) 5FEAR~EEOENMGE :  (b) Liabilities directly associated with
assets held for sale:
RLAST R IR R A5 FF 32 Account payable and accrued
expenses 234 =
AT I A 51 Current income tax liabilities 150 =
AINZE R E B R EIR Total liabilities of the BHKMC
BR N B A B 384 =
() FERFTEMEEKE (c) Cumulative income recognised in
FHRIAR 21T iEs other comprehensive income
relating to the assets held for sale:
SCHAER Translation reserve 13,104 -
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20. FTHEEMTA

198

(a)

MRATETIR

AEFANATINTET A hAER
W BN -

B RFI R A—AI R E R
WA —AIASRENAE - RS
MR EEE R TR -
BETEMERIN  ZFEXZTHR
FMAE - AEEWEINRIRZS
NFEREBTHIEMEERHEY
MEBERA - AEASEYTRF
B~ BAXELHFLLY - RHizHR
BERLE NG R K o

ETHRERITANRZNEM AT
WSS RN R IEIAR T ARG — LR
MEE - MR RBRE R AR RI &
MER SIS TES AR FE -
Itk 3 AN B Sz B 7 S A T W ) 45 B Bk
NIEREG o BEE T2 M R FOCR AN
HEROR) - STET ARG RS
£ B (R =) AR (Af) @
T TETHITANSHRE LS
WEH - LREFSEAFEMEE -
EOTETRESRMA T Rtz AF L
1B - AR BT AMRK 3D ° PIEFE DT
ETARAFEHT X

20. Derivative financial instruments

(a)

Use of derivative

The Group uses the following derivative instruments to
hedge the Group's financial risks.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to
exchange one set of cash flows for another. Swaps result in
an economic exchange of currencies or interest rates or a
combination of all these. No exchange of principal takes
place except for certain currency swaps. The Group's credit
risk represents the potential cost to replace the swap
contracts if counterparties fail to perform their obligations.
This risk is monitored on an ongoing basis with reference to
the current fair value, a proportion of the notional amounts
of the contracts and the liquidity of the market.

The notional amounts of certain types of financial
instruments provide a basis for comparison with instruments
recognised on the statement of financial position but do not
necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows
involved or the current fair value of the instruments and,
therefore, do not indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or
price risks. The derivative instruments become favourable
(assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations
in market interest rates or foreign exchange rates relative to
their terms. The aggregate contractual or notional amounts
of derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent to
which instruments are favourable or unfavourable, and thus
the aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and
liabilities, can fluctuate significantly from time to time. The
fair values of derivative instruments held are set out below.
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FEARFLT
The Group and the Company

&4/
£ AVE % N¥E
Contract/ Fair values Contract/ Fair values
notional &= il notional e Uil
amounts Assets Liabilities amounts Assets Liabilities
Ti#x THT TR BT TBx THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

() FRARBMAZIHE () Derivatives not qualified as hedges

MfTETA for accounting purposes
Gilp st Interest rate swaps 2,489,997 26,087 (1,313) 3494637 54,383 (a,581)
s Currency swaps 1,916,749 11,574 - 3491405 19,421 -
37,661 (1,313) 73804 (4,541)
(i) AHERRHTETA (i) Fair value hedge derivatives
sk Interest rate swaps 14,982,375 631,659 (24,304) 16785925 1,226,686 (252)
G Currency swaps 16,689,049 162,06  (759,841) 17,464,320 142523 (170,302)
793765 (784,145) 1,369,209 (170,554)
EWATATRRE/ Total recognised derivative
(fuf) 550 assets/(liabilities) 831,426  (785,458) 1,443,013 (175,095)
(b) FiESN (b) Hedging activities
WHTHE T AR RNFEXN A ISR Derivatives may qualify as hedges for accounting purposes if
A BRIt E - AKRRFE X they are fair value hedges or cash flow hedges. The Group’s
R« REFM AN TFENAEER fair value hedge principally consists of interest rate and
FEHRTRERE A1THRFSIEHFAFE currency swaps that are used to protect interest rate risk
B (R AR 2 P 51 B9 1) 2= XU A0 and foreign currency risk resulting from any potential change
SNCRBERF M iR o F=F in fair value of underlying debt securities issued. There were
—=F+ZA=+—HERZFE—Z=F no derivatives designated as cash flow hedges as at 31
+ZA=+—H ' FEEMETAN December 2013 and 31 December 2012.

ERNAITETE -
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21. ERRAEPEN 21. Loan portfolio, net
(a) GERASEKRE (a) Loan portfolio less allowance
AREHA NG
The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
FTET FHT TAERT TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RIgT A Mortgage portfolio
F= Residential
—&E — Hong Kong 16,198,898 16,530,736 10,891,390 12,584,243
— B — Qverseas 2,255,939 4,355,258 2,255,939 4,355,258
&l Commercial 3,000,000 4,000,000 3,000,000 4,000,000
FEHIRIB LTI Non-mortgage portfolio 815,385 1,013,457 796,540 1,008,332
22,270,222 25,899,451 16,943,869 21,947,833
RFORMEE % Allowance for loan
impairment (1,825) (4,052) (1,295) (4,030)
22,268,397 25,895,399 16,942,574 21,943,803
RRRER SR RRAE W ARE Total allowance for loan impairment as a percentage of the
ARG ERNB LA outstanding principal balances of the loan portfolio is as

follows:

AREHA KAT
The Group The Company

2013 2012 2013 2012

RHREREEH L Total allowance for loan

MAE BHHE D impairment as a
percentage of the
gross loan portfolio 0.01% 0.02% 0.01% 0.02%
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RBERESHERBERE (b)

A&H
The Group

Allowance for loan impairment on loan portfolio

RAT
The Company

2013
TER
HK$'000

2012
TAT
HK$'000

2013
FTERT
HK$’000

2012
TET
HK$'000

BETE Collective assessment
T—RA—H As at 1 January 4,052 7,622 4,030 7,478
FUzE R ML El (FFE13) Released to income

statement (Note 13) (3,545) (5,680) (4,508) (5,558)
AT Loans written off (455) = - _
1 [o] B 3 88 B 3K Recoveries of loans

previously written off 1,773 2,110 1,773 2,110
T+=A=+—H As at 31 December 1,825 4,052 1,295 4,030

YEH BT ORI E L &Y - BE RiR T Allowance for loan impairment was made after taking into

FOWFEWERIHE T2 —=
F+ZA=+—HRZF——-F+=
R=+—8  HEsEINRE RS
IRAEEE RER S ©

I == = W o SR =
M :

BEHRD

account the current market value of the collateral of the
delinquent loan. No allowance for loan impairment was
provided for overseas and commercial mortgage portfolio as
at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012.

Individually impaired loans collectively assessed on a
portfolio basis are analysed as follows:

REH b /N
The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
TET FHET TET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BERZTAS S5 Gross impaired loan portfolio 2,178 2,197 1,578 2,197
J\Mm@% Allowance for loan
impairment (523) (380) (62) (380)
1,655 1,817 1,516 1,817
ﬁ?ﬂﬁ@ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ Allowance for loan
A RINE D impairment as a
percentage of gross
impaired loan portfolio 24.0% 17.3% 3.9% 17.3%
BERRAES B8 4S Gross impaired loan portfolio
RS BRI B SAEL  as apercentage of gross
loan portfolio 0.01% 0.01% 0.01% 0.01%
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IREEFA b /N
The Group The Company

2013 2012 2013 2012
TR THET TR TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

LAAE 2 A AN A] Allowance for loan

Y70 8I3% R R B R impairment under
FTYER SR AR & collective assessment for
loans not individually
identified as impaired 1,302 3,672 1,233 3,650
(c) BFREASHHRMEHERAS (c) Netinvestments in finance leases included in loan
] portfolio
FEFAREAT
The Group and the Company
2013
AT R AR LY RREAEH B AR R U A 49
AIIE FEWA RIS
Present value Interest Total
of minimum income minimum
lease relating to lease
payments future payments
receivable periods receivable
TER TERT THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T DA BA [0 iz YR Amounts receivable:

— —FR — within one year 72,654 14,344 86,998

——FFERFN — after one year but within
five years 250,512 44,569 295,081
—hFRF — after five years 473,374 53,573 526,947

796,540 112,486 909,026
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T UAT H 80 R M R

RERRARAT
The Group and the Company

2012

R K ERA) 6
FEWA
Interest
income
relating to
future
periods
THAT
HK$'000

=LAV ES)
FIIE
Present value

=3IV GEE)
RIS AN
Total
minimum
lease
payments
receivable
TEAT
HK$'000

of minimum
lease
payments
receivable
THT
HK$'000

Amounts receivable:

——FQR — within one year 89,919 18,210 108,129
——FFERFN — after one year but within

five years 312,425 56,765 369,190

—hFF — after five years 605,988 68,806 674,794

1,008,332 143,781 1,152,113

F-Z2-=F+-A=+-BR=-%
——F+-_A=+—"HB HEHmmA
TR R INVE B R FORE R & ©
22. IEHRE
(a) TTEHEITES

B ESIRE S5 IE S

No allowance for loan impairment was provided for finance
lease receivable as at 31 December 2013 and 31 December
2012.

22. Investment securities
(a) Available-for-sale securities
AEFRARD T
The Group and the Company
2012
FET
HK$'000

2013
T
HK$'000

Debt securities at fair value

TEE LM Listed in Hong Kong 378,506 =

TFEBRINET Listed outside Hong Kong 192,439 334,014

| ) Unlisted 2,370,960 2,160,316
BN E S ik 5 ELADUE 25 Other securities at fair value

T&EELEM Listed in Hong Kong 918,550 3,318,497
EIR:duk- A= 9=kl Total available-for-sale securities 3,860,455 5,812,827

HMIESIER B ARRES M~
BRAERER -

Other securities refer to exchange-traded funds and real
estate investment trust.
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B RATHAZE R o 4 Al 4 B IE A 40 Available-for-sale securities are analysed by categories of
s 8 issuers as follows:
REF B AR F]
The Group and the Company
2013 2012
FHET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RITRHE MR Banks and other financial institutions 2,365,122 1,834,625
NEHK Public sector entities - 295,448
oI A Central government 385,219 364,257
HAfh Others 1,110,114 3,318,497
3,860,455 5,812,827
A E I AT SR AT The movement in available-for-sale securities is summarised
as follows:
AEHRAA T
The Group and the Company
2013 2012
FHET T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FT—H—H As at 1 January 5,812,827 2,303,703
30 Additions 5,277,911 4,161,064
HE KRR E Sale and redemption (7,206,184) (1,011,501)
5 Amortisation (1,346) 4,535
NEEZRD) Change in fair value (37,853) 357,875
SNTOCH ZEN Exchange difference 15,100 (2,849)
F+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 3,860,455 5,812,827

The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2013



(b) FHBEEIHIES (b) Held-to-maturity securities

RERARKRAT
The Group and the Company

2013 2012
FTERT T
HK$'000 HK$°000

RS A AN 1 R Y (5 35 0E 5 Debt securities at amortised cost

TEELE™M Listed in Hong Kong 2,739,543 2,532,909

TEBEINET Listed outside Hong Kong 2,916,290 2,953,324

5,655,833 5,486,233

E L Unlisted 2,904,762 3,751,575

BB E B HIL A B4 Total held-to-maturity securities 8,560,595 9,237,808
A THE Market value of listed securities

—REEIH — held-to-maturity 5,768,239 5,815,111

BRI LR DA Z 2 B 5 Held-to-maturity securities are analysed by categories of
wnR issuers as follows:
REARKRAT

The Group and the Company

2013 2012

THET FHTT

HK$'000 HK$'000

RIT R EME R Banks and other financial institutions 4,568,711 5,120,077

DA Corporate entities 2,455,718 2,043,777

NENA Public sector entities 765,168 1,267,853

R Central governments 550,742 767,362

B Others 220,256 38,739

8,560,595 9,237,808
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FAZF ML SN RLAT

The movement in held-to-maturity securities is summarised
as follows:

REARARD T
The Group and the Company

2013
THT
HK$'000

2012
TAT
HK$'000

F—HA—H As at 1 January 9,237,808 8,269,148
#Zhn Additions 2,054,866 1,926,101
& Kk e Sale and redemption (2,761,350) (957,690)
HE4H Amortisation (8,713) (12,520)
GNTISE I, ZE 5 Exchange difference 37,984 12,769
FT+=A=+—H As at 31 December 8,560,595 9,237,808

23. B AEIRA

FE LML - KAE

23. Interests in subsidiaries

RAF]
The Company

2013
FTER
HK$'000

2012
TAT
HK$'000

Unlisted shares, at cost

ERRBEESREN A HKMC Mortgage Management Limited 1,000 1,000
RNz EBRERmABERARAT  Bauhinia HKMC Corporation Limited

(FE) (held for sale) 102,060 102,060

103,060 103,060

IEYNGIE e Due from a subsidiary 5,191,190 3,840,609

5,294,250 3,943,669

B8 X BB R SR HE AR K% T [ i R

HERIHHRITE -

206

The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured and has no fixed
term of repayment. Interest is charged at market rates.
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TZF—=F+-A=1+—H ZZ2ME

The details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013

NRFFELAT - are:
FEAR R AL i R BT/ BEMRBRAEE B SERR AR X
Place of FELS Particulars of issued/ Effective
incorporation Principal activities registered capital equity held
BREBEEARR AR B WARERIZBIZ 1,000,000 7T 100%
BRI BREE BT
HKMC Mortgage Management Hong Kong Mortgage purchases HK$1,000,000 of HK$1 100%
Limited and servicing ordinary share each
RNZEREMAAREBBAR  HE RIBOTFIER 5 ARM MZTTEA R AR 90%
Bauhinia HKMC Corporation PRC Mortgage guarantee RMB100 million registered 90%
Limited business capital

24. BERATRRAE

24

. Investment in a joint venture

AEH
The Group

2013
THxT
HK$'000

+—H—H As at 1 January - 130,045
HIBR T IS R A1 8955 F Share of profit, net of tax - 2,450
AN R Z AR (M9)£33) Exchange differences (Note 33) - 5,276
ENaEs) — AFEHES Other equity movement — fair value

(BfF5%33) reserve (Note 33) - (32)
HEASRNFIRA Disposal of investment in a joint venture - (137,739)
F+=-—HA=+—H As at 31 December - =

EBRBIEFERAH

TE-=FFR
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FTZFE—=—F+=F AEHATKEEE In December 2012, the Group completed the disposal of all its
ZFERATREZRBERERLSZHE interest in a joint venture, Cagamas HKMC Berhad, with the
7t 22 A Cagamas HKMC Berhad " BT B X principal activities of mortgage guaranty business in Malaysia, at a
@ PERM1I7LZET  HEZERA cash consideration of HK$137 million with the following assets and
RIFVR=MART liabilities of the joint venture disposed of:
FH&TT
HK$'000
ViRzUh v Current assets 138,221
MBI Current liabilities (482)
I EH) B Net assets disposed of 137,739
ZRHSC IS M PEER (FE33) Cumulative exchange gain and fair value reserves
(Note 33) (7,733)
o i as Gain on disposal 7,137
K Consideration 137,143

25. FftREI « IR R HEM T~ 25. Prepayments, deposits and other assets

AREH NN
The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
FET FHT THET TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
U3 7= Repossessed assets 1,590 2,024 1,590 957
NGIES -1t Corporate club debentures 750 750 750 750
A HERR (W) Dividend receivable from
NGres) available-for-sale
investments (listed) - 22,185 - 22,185
A B R Other receivable - - - 7.984
Hith Others 15,690 14,682 14,468 14,644
18,030 39,641 16,808 46,520
H At 57 47 51 I A2 {5 45 Bauhinia MBS Limited Other receivable represented the amount drawn by Bauhinia MBS
VAT BB UE H 1T R A A TR IR IBIE 55 © Limited for the redemption of the MBS issued under the MBS
Programme.
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26. EIER=

26. Fixed assets

F&RH
The Group

REMLESE  equipment, AE
Leasehold furniture B Motor BH
improvement  and fixtures ~ Computers vehicle Total
THT AT THT TET THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-E-——%-f-H Net book amount as at
T 1 January 2012 4,157 99 26121 = 31,274
NE Additions 124 93 11,341 424 11,982
I8 (FHF10) Depreciation charge (Note 10) (1,579) (381) (12,061) (106) (14,127)
LR AR Exchange acjustments - - (1) - (1)
F-E—=%+-A=+—H Netbookamountas at
iNEEE 31 December 2012 2,102 708 25,400 318 29128
NE Additions 14,040 1,584 17,096 = 32,720
1718 (K2 10) Depreciation charge (Note 10) (1,825) (398) (15,434) (106) (17,763)
F-Z-=£+-A=t—-H Nethook amount as at
k2 & 31 December 2013 14,917 1,894 27,062 212 44,085
F-E-=Z%+-HA=1+-H Asat31December 2013
AAE Cost 27,082 8,695 173,617 650 210,044
21714718 Accumulated depreciation (12,165) (6,801) (146,555) (438) (165,959)
tkE 2 Net book amount 14,917 1,894 27,062 212 44,085
F-ZF-——%+=-A=1+—H Asat31December 2012
XAE Cost 13,042 7,158 156,479 650 177,329
ESgiills Accumulated depreciation (10,340) (6,450) (131,079) (332) (148,201)
iR Net book amount 2702 708 25,400 318 29,128
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b UG
The Company

BEMLESE  equipment, R
Leasehold furniture H Motor BH
improvement  and fixtures  Computers vehicle Total
TEL THL THL AL THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-F-—-%#-f-H Net book amount as at
iR 1 January 2012 4,157 991 25,801 - 30,949
NE Additions 124 93 11,341 424 11,982
1718 Depreciation charge (1,579) (376) (11,754) (106) (13,815)
FZZ——F+=-A=1+—H Netbookamountas at
I 31 December 2012 2,702 708 25,338 318 29,116
ANE Additions 14,040 1,584 17,096 - 32,720
s Depreciation charge (1,825) (398) (15422) (106) (17.751)
F=-Z-=F+=-A=+-H Netbook amount as at
k2 & 31 December 2013 14,917 1,894 27,062 212 44,085
F-5-=%+=A=t+-H Asat31December 2013
AME Cost 27,082 8,666 172,154 650 208,552
EShpils Accumulated depreciation (12,165) (6,772) (145,092) (438) (164,467)
EEE Net book amount 14,917 1,894 27,062 212 44,085
F-E-—F+-A=1+—H Asat31December 2012
KAE Cost 13,042 7,130 155,058 650 175,880
2114718 Accumulated depreciation (10,340) (6,422) (129,670) (332) (146,764)
e Net book amount 2,102 708 25,388 318 29116
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27. MFFIR

27. Interest payable

REH AT
The Group

The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
THET FHAT THET THAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

DA & TR0 B4 A 8

Interest payable from

—BRIRFIESH — debt securities issued 175,598 200,957 175,598 200,951
— FEEEE S — interest rate swap
contracts 19,040 33,488 19,040 33,488
— BRITIRIBIL AN — mortgage-backed
Hofth 5 i securities issued and
other liabilities 1,192 1,317 1,192 1,247
195,830 235,756 195,830 235,686

2&%ﬁ%ﬁ\&ﬁﬁ§&§%ﬁ 28
123

. Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other

1S BT Kz R A5FFF S Accounts payable and
accrued expenses

HL A 7 R Other payable

H it 7 Other liabilities

HAbtk % Other provision

liabilities
IREEFA KA F]
The Group The Company

2013 2012 2013 2012
FTHT FHET FTHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
68,155 102,628 68,623 114,767
- = - 210,474
4,523,574 4,340,370 4,523,574 4,340,370
20,531 22,118 20,531 22,118

4,612,260 4,465,116 4,612,728 4,687,729

H fth 7GR T8 R /NE BV R EAR T X T KR
BIL B HE e B 4 2 B9 B8 % 28 309,333,000 75
o (=& — — £ : 140,241,00075 7t ) (K=
177138) * SRIEART =TT =F+=-A4
RZFTNF— A 8 BFEENEIBRR
= 5T & HE D58 1A e R0 RER114,214,241,000
T (T — —4F : 4,200,129,0005& 7T ) °

Other liabilities represented the guarantee fee of HK$309,333,000
(2012: HK$140,241,000) received under the special concessionary
measures of the SME Financing Guarantee Scheme (Notes 17 and
38) and the deferred consideration of HK$4,214,241,000 (2012:
HK$4,200,129,000) used for credit enhancement on the mortgage
loans purchased from the Government in December 2003 and
January 2004.
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Bt A2 &][A Bauhinia MBS Limited & In aggregate, the Company sold HK$3 billion of mortgage loans to
2B TIRBOLRIEIE H 4l - FHU SR A Bauhinia MBS Limited for securitisation, in which, the Company
HREFESS5MIEE - BIARBRIHRA continued to recognise the mortgage loans in “Loan portfolio, net”
[TERABE B - DART [HE R 5 to the extent of the guarantee and continuing involvement. A
T 1A — %= K {7 Bauhinia MBS Limited & £ liability due to Bauhinia MBS Limited shown as “Other payable” of
e FZE——F+=-_A=+—8  Hftt HK$210,474,000 was recognised as at 31 December 2012 (Note
N FRINA 210,474,000 3 7T (HE37) © 37).
29. REETA B R BIRBETIF 29. Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets
RER REH
The Group The Group
2013
£ BRE A8 £ f b3
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross i Net
TR THT TR BT ‘ THT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAEHRERBRRERLE S Provision for uneamed premiums and
guarantee fees 1,253,898 175764 1,078,134 19605 215605 1,280,451
RREREE Provision for outstanding claims
— B/ (kE)8R — claims reported/recovery) 8,156 (2 8,158 8228 2 8230
—EFERRERER — claims incurred but not reported 32,658 4,980 27,678 41579 6,404 35,175

40,814 4,978 35,836 49,807 6,402 43,405

1,294,712 180,742 1,113,970 1,945,863 222,007 1,323,856

ADE AT
The Company The Company
2013
2] BRE AH e BRE A
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance e
TER THT TR B T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEHRE AR ARE Provision for unearned premiums and
guarantee fees 1,253,898 175,764 1,078,134 1,496,056 215,605 1,280,451
FRBREE Provision for outstanding claims
—BaiR/ (k@) B & — claims reported/(recovery) 8,156 2 8,158 8,228 0) 8,230
—BFEERERER — claims incurred but not reported 34,980 5,291 29,689 43792 6,769 37,023

43,136 5289 37,847 52,020 6,767 45,283

1,297,034 181,053 1,115,981 1,548,076 222372 1,325,704

212 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2013



(a) RHHRBRRIEBRBAKET (a) Analysis of movements in provision for unearned

T premiums and guarantee fees
FEAREAAH AEARAAT
The Group and the Company The Group and the Company
2013 20
£ ] BRRE A8 4
Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance
Ti#x THT TR BT Titn THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
+—H—H Asat 1 January 1,496,056 215,605 1,280,451 1,568,916 199467 1,369,449
B HERR 2R (F$)E8) Premiums written (Note 8) 318,053 43414 274,639 556,885 112,347 444,538
EomHA R R (FHE8) Premiums eamed (Note 8) (560,211) (83,255 (476,956  (629,745) (96,209 (53353)
Fr=E=—E As at 31 December 1,253,898 175764 1,078,134 1496,0% 215605 1,280,451
(b) KRREARBREFTIHFHWOT (b) Analysis of movements in provision for outstanding
claims
REH yiV:
The Group The Group
2013 2012
1) BRE A £ A
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
Ti#x THT TR T ‘ THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
T-A-H Asat 1 January 49,807 6,402 43,405 61,679 9,444 52,235
RANGES Claims paid (998) - (998) (2479) (285) 2,194)
BRERZR Claims recovery 2,51 315 2,19 53 47 6
B(E%)/FERR (HE8) Claims (written back)/incurred (Note 8)
—BHERER — Claims reported (1,585) (315) (1,270) 8772 238 8,534
— DL ERBRER — claims incurred but not reported (8,921) (1,424) (7.497) (18,218) (3042 (15,176)
F+=RA=+-E As at 31 December 40,814 4,978 35,836 49,807 6,402 43405
N YN
The Company The Company
2013 2012
E BRRE A8 £ B
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance
TR THT TR Tir ou BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
T-A-H Asat 1 January 52,020 6,767 45,253 61,679 9,444 52,235
BffER Claims paid (998) - (998) (2662) (285) (2.377)
BYERZR Claims recovery 2,694 315 2,379 53 47 6
B(RI%)/FERR Claims (written back)/incurred
—DEREER — claims reported (1,768) (315) (1,453) 8,955 238 8,717
—BELERBRER — claims incurred but not reported (8,812) (1,478) (7,334) (16,005) (2,677) (13,328)
F+=R=+-8 As at 31 December 43,136 5,289 37,847 52,020 6,767 45253
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() fAfEzTEEM (c) Liability adequacy test
BTG RNAE - ZELIELH The liability adequacy test considers current estimates of all
NeRERPRVWEBEZASHEXI® contractual cash flows, and of related cash flows such as
MEMIAGIT MRERTFZZF claims handling costs, the test shows that, as at 31
— =%+ A=+—RHAKkR=ZF—=F December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the Group’s
TZA=1+—H ' XEFNRKR AR insurance liabilities are adequate.
TR
30. EAITHRSZIES 30. Debt securities issued
REARAKRAT
The Group and the Company
2013 2012
FHET FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
22 14 48 FR 2R 1 ik B9 45 S5 IE 35 Debt securities carried at
amortised cost
RS IR EITITRIGS DIP notes 299,944 559,800
HREAfiR 5 MTN 1,924,736 2,832,695
RSN MK B R SSIE S S8 Total debt securities carried at
amortised cost 2,224,680 3,392,495
BERAI I E HLUAAFENF Debt securities designated as
B B S5k 35 hedged items under
fair value hedge
S TARITITRIGS DIP notes 6,447,350 9,079,358
BEMRSRITIT REMRS RBIP and other notes - 50,999
HREAfR 5 MTN 22,358,153 23,541,488
FERIRI A HALFE H  Total debt securities designated as
E’]{mx 5 SN hedged items under fair value hedge 28,805,503 32,671,845
FHABRWIARIEE RN UAQFE Debt securities designated as at
T It Az MRSl fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition
RS TR EITITRIGS DIP notes 124,738 138,996
TERFAITITN RE M T RBIP and other notes 200,264 201,291
T HET AR H8 7€ N AN & Total debt securities designated as at
DL AR B 551 5 B0 fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition 325,002 340,287
B AITRSIUES B8 Total debt securities issued 31,355,185 36,404,627
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FER #xxﬁiiﬁ( ——F:x)F
NIEH IR $E E 1@xkﬁ)\hma’ﬂ
REZILS - 12%@@@11%2@%@@%
?%)&ﬂ“ﬂ“’maﬁ@ T AN HEE N

ANFEZHITA BRSNS B ACIKEE
$X$EI¢E%EQWJ%$£JHHN ME
BB AZ M EH 64,198,000 T (==
— —4F : 48,913,000/ 7T) °

ZEETEAARFEINRNERAGIZE
ERERBTRAARRZEHNRLES) o

BERITRFIEFH LSRN T

During the year, no debt securities (2012: nil) were designated on
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. The fair
value changes are attributable to changes in benchmark interest
rates for the debt securities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss. The carrying amount of the financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition is HK$64,198,000 (2012: HK$48,913,000) lower than the
amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at
maturity to the note holders.

There were no significant gains or losses attributable to changes in
the credit risk of the Company for those financial liabilities

designated as at fair value.

The movement in debt securities issued is summarised as follows:

REF KA D F

The Group and the Company

2013 2012

FHET FHTT

HK$'000 HK$'000

F—H—H As at 1 January 35,268,184 40,312,410
KIT Issuance 18,161,718 19,098,302
R T Less: Redemption (21,984,670) (24,149,259)
SNTSE R ZE 5T Exchange difference (447) 6,731
BN ME B Total nominal value 31,444,785 35,268,184
Prib R 200 Unamortised portion of discount (130,483) (129,005)
NEEIFE Fair value adjustment 40,883 1,265,448
F+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 31,355,185 36,404,627

REERITHIRS Notes issued during the year comprise:

BERITEHAMEE

Amount issued at nominal value

ARERARAD T
The Group and
the Company

AR 35
MTN
FTERT
HK$'000

18,161,718

B BRI

Consideration received

18,127,508

Fﬁﬁaﬂif?ﬂﬁ%%lft%iﬂﬁ$‘il%}ﬁ$ﬁﬂ
RE - MATZERSIES B ERE—
EcneREBRERE -

All the debt securities issued are unsecured obligations of the
Group, and are issued for the purposes of providing general
working capital and refinancing.
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31. EATIRBIES 31. Mortgage-backed securities issued

AEHA
The Group

2013 2012
TR TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000

AR AN HINR AN A FFE{R MBS at amortised cost and guaranteed by

BIIRIBIE S 1N T 8918 the Company under the
iE % (Bf% 37) MBS Programme (Note 37) - 214,672
+—H—H As at 1 January 214,672 367,137
R I Less: Redemption (214,672) (152,465)
F+=-—RA=+—H As at 31 December - 214,672
FRB RIS 55 N &M A R R A TRAE - All MBS were collateralised obligation of the structured
HAMARRIRRBRFAERHERE entities and issued for the purpose of providing funds to
i &Z47 (F)E37) - FIBRBIESFE T & purchase mortgage portfolios from the Company (Note 37).
—=F=HK[M - All MBS were redeemed in March 2013.
32. & 32. Share capital
—E—=FR
—E——F
2013 and 2012
FTET
HK$'000
A Authorised
SR EE 178 TR 30 {2 % @Ak 3 billion ordinary shares of HK$1 each 3,000,000
BAITRAR Issued and fully paid
BAXTEE 178 TR 202 B @ A% 2 billion ordinary shares of HK$1 each 2,000,000
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Hipvfit&

33. Other reserves

KEMR
The Group
RE#EE AYERE NS LRRE
Contingency Fair value Hedging Translation B8
reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
TAL THT THL TAL THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-E——5-F—H Asat 1 January 2012 731,562 302,615 (13,244t 10911 1,031,844
EHMEEAFNATERS :  Changein fair value of
available-for-sale securities:
— KRB A — net unrealised gains - 357,875 - - 357,875
— HEREH (E12) — realisation on disposal (Note 12) - (38,230) - - (38.230)
— P+ — amortisation* - 39 - - 39
— BRI 140) — tax effect (Note 14(0)) = (52,748) - = (52,748)
— BRAFANATASH — net unrealised losses of a
A3 (fiE24) joint venture (Note 24) = (32) - = (32)
Y& XA Cash flow hedges
—RANREROATFETSH  —fairvalue changes transferred
to income statement - - 5,495 - 5,495
— B (M 14(0)) — tax effect (Note 14(0)) - - (907) - (907)
FMLAER Currency translation difference
—BAF — subsidiary - = = 914 914
— &RAF(HHE2) — joint venture (Note 24) - - - 5,276 5,276
HERRNARARKE Release of fair value and translation
HATFERSTLLHES reserve Lpon disposal of
(M2 24) investment in a joint venture
(Note 24) = (410) - (7.323) (7,733
EteEkE/ (1) Other comprehensive income/(loss) - 266,494 4,588 (1133 269,949
HREERERTFSANGE  Transfer of 50% or 75% of net
REBHMS0%HT5%ZE risk premium earned from retained
RS profits to contingency reserve 266,266 - - - 266,266
HRRER KR ZRBEH Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits (20,055) - - - (20,055)
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i -3
The Group
K% AVERE NAEE LHESE
Contingency Fair value Hedging Translation Jk i
reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
T T T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-E-——%+-A=+-8/ Asat31December 2012/
—F-=F-f-H 1 January 2013 977,773 569,109 (8,656) 9,778 1,548,004
AERETANATET :  Change infair value of
available-for-sale securities:
— XRS5 A — net unrealised losses - (37,853) - - (37,853)
— HMERTI ()512) — realisation on disposal (Note 12) - (295,593) - - (295,593)
— P — amortisation* - 34 - - 34
— BB (B3E 140) —tax effect (Note 14(0)) - 54,908 - - 54,908
b shal Cash flow hedges
—RARSEROATET  —fairvalue changes transferred
to income Statement - - 4272 - 4272
— B (Frx 1400) — tax effect (Note 14(0) - - (704) - (704)
SMLRER Currency translation difference
— Al — subsidiary - - - 3,32 332
Et2mE(SH)/ Wi Other comprehensive (loss)/income - (278,504) 3,568 332 (271,610)
HRDHENERDFANGE  Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
RE TR 50% S 75% 2 premium earned from retained
NEAS profits to contingency reserve 259,008 - - - 259,008
AN &R B 2R E S Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits (22,954) - - - (22,954)
F=ZF-=F+ZA=1t—-H Asat31December 2013 1,213,827 290,605 (5,088) 13,104 1,512,448

* A S IES & K 215 E 2R HESA R
TIFH TSR -

‘* NZE-—ZFER_FT——FENTHERFNI
SR A FTE FRAOBITSHR B2
& IEEHITHOIA LRI ©
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the amortisation of unrealised loss to income statement on available-for-sale
securities transferred to held-to-maturity securities.

brought forward from cumulative loss then existing in hedging reserve when
cash flow hedges were de-designated in 2010 and 2011. Since then, no new
cash flow hedge has been conducted.
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ADH

The Company
Rk AREEE T &
Contingency Fair value Hedging B
reserve reserve reserve Total
FHT FHT THAT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-F—=—%—HF—8H As at 1 January 2012 731,562 302,173 (13,244)¢ 1,020,491
HEHETHNAFE Change in fair value of
B available-for-sale securities:
— KRBV WS 55 — net unrealised gains - 357,875 - 357,875
— HER I (HHE12) — realisation on disposal
(Note 12) - (38,230) - (38,230)
— M4~ — amortisation* - 39 - 39
— BT (AHE 14(0)) — tax effect (Note 14 (b)) = (52,748) - (52,748)
b o Pt Cash flow hedges
— R AREEN A TE — fair value changes
L) transferred to income
statement - - 5,495 5,495
— U (£ 14(0)) — tax effect (Note 14(b)) - - (907) (907)
H 4 F s Other comprehensive income - 266,936 4,588 271,524
HRERFEREFHENK  Transfer of 50% or 75% of net
1REZ% 3 EN /) 50% 3% 75% risk premium earned from
ENRE R retained profits to
contingency reserve 266,266 - - 266,266
H LB i 8 34 [ = (R B Release of contingency reserve
to retained profits (20,055) - - (20,055)
F-Z——F+=-F=+—H/ Asat 31 December 2012/
—E—=#—f—H 1 January 2013 977,773 569,109 (8,656) 1,538,226
AHEHEITFNRTE Change in fair value of
B available-for-sale securities:
— RIS A — net unrealised losses - (37,853) - (37,853)
— HER I (HHE12) — realisation on disposal
(Note 12) = (295,593) = (295,593)
— PR — amortisation* - 34 - 34
— BRI (£ 14()) — tax effect (Note 14(b)) - 54,908 - 54,908
P& x0T Cash flow hedges
—RABEEHATE — fair value changes
E)] transferred to income
Statement - - 4,272 4,272
— B (FHE 14() — tax effect (Note 14(b)) - - (704) (704)
Hip2® (SH),/Was Other comprehensive
(loss)/income - (278,504) 3,568 (274,936)
B IR B s ) $ Tk B R BN S Transfer of 50% or 75% of net
{RET S EH 50% =X 75% risk premium earned from
ENRES retained profits to
contingency reserve 259,008 - - 259,008
B X B 8 & 34 B 2R B8R A Release of contingency reserve
to retained profits (22,954) - - (22,954)
F=-F-—-=#+=-H=+—8 Asat 31December 2013 1,213,827 290,605 (5,088) 1,499,344

B A S IES K 2558 E R HIESAT R *

BUSH - TREARMH -

N_E-—FFR_F——FHTBLHHN ’
ERAPEAH RN R TSR Bk
& RER—ITIHNI LRI o

the amortisation of unrealised loss to income statement on available-for-sale
securities transferred to held-to-maturity securities.

brought forward from cumulative loss then existing in hedging reserve when
cash flow hedges were de-designated in 2010 and 2011. Since then, no new

cash flow hedge has been conducted.
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SREMEIREKME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34. 5EBEXALITIAIMEXRRS

220

(a)

AR w] A E RRAINCE S TR
AFDFAAE - ARESHXALIT
MTEMRS e

SRARANMMEESREERR(F
BEER)NXHEE TS :

() ARFERBRBEEERME
ENRFSTATREERSR
SHEHEREREERER
S HHEMMOFEL(ZE
——F 105 ET) B ED
BB EARNFERMIZRS
MZEA

(i) INCESBELEBSERRAAN
N AR 30012 7 T 1B IR =
B F T —=ZF+_A
=t—BHERELBRF(=
FF R

iy FT—E-—=F+-"A=+—
B ARBHFRERATERS
SINCEEEREGH(ZF
——F 271287 Rk

(iv) AREFAFEEHMLS707 5
TT(ZF—=% : 1,030 5/57T)
TEEEER  EANEES
ERMEBARTIMNER -

SBRNZZEE TS :

(i) NN IR NN
DAE - FIEMEE R KEH
BR REESEHH6507
BIL(ZF—Z4F : 650578 7T)
HeTERSER

34. Material related party transactions

(a)

The Company is owned by the Financial Secretary as
Controller of the Exchange Fund. The Company entered into
various transactions with the following related parties.

Transactions with the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(HKMA), a Government-related entity, included the
following:

(i)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

the Company subscribed to the custodian and clearing
agent services provided by the Central Moneymarkets
Unit Service operated by the HKMA and paid HK$1.1
million (2012: HK$1 million) by way of fees to the HKMA
for such services during the year;

the Exchange Fund through the HKMA had provided
the Company with a HK$30 billion revolving credit
facility, and there was no outstanding balance as at 31
December 2013 (2012: nil);

the Company held no investment (2012: HK$270
million) in the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Bills and
Notes as at 31 December 2013; and

the Company paid a secondment fee of HK$8.7 million
(2012: HK$10.3 million) for secondees from the HKMA
during the year.

Transactions with the Government included the following:

(i)

the Company rented office premises from The Financial
Secretary Incorporated (FSI) and paid a total of HK$6.5
million (2012: HK$6.5 million) rental to the HKMA under
the direction of FSI during the year;
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(iii)

(iv)

AARFAFEBMEKF R K
EE M ENSNZ B (&
— —F 2712 BTT) RB T

xh .
A

FZ=FE—=F+=-A=+—
B AREEFELLZET(Z
T— 4  A54ZBTT) BB
FRFRE R - R1SF1S.1,760
AABT(ZFE—Z=F 17807
B &

ARalF=FE——FHARIN
B NEFREFRITR - R
HEABRZEKERBABTX
TEY 2 5 BURIEAGEE 4 1,000
127870 HEE—ANFE AR
RRENTFIER>~ R 115
= FHIE3S °

52 RAMBARIEBRIBEERRA
ANXZ S EE TS :

(ii)

AARBMB AR FEEEZ
A I 3K A #2458 DT R IR 1B 1R
K &

ERNBRFIT N EESE
SEBIRIBEEAR AT RIE
AR AN ZZ 51T
RIT - ST/ DA S5
TR - BRITR] - FBR
BEEAR AR AR AR
RITE AT GTFREHS
BHEBOHAE ©

S5%MRARNR S BI/EAEM A B FT
EITHRBIESFRERR F=2F
—=F+-_A=1+—BHBERERL
g (ZF——4F : 21528 7T) (K
SE31) o

(iii)

(iv)

the Company purchased mortgage loans of HK$151
million (2012: HK$127 million) from FSI during the year;

the Company held investment of HK$449 million (2012:
HK$454 million) in the Hong Kong Government Bonds
as at 31 December 2013 and the interest thereon was
HK$17.6 million (2012: HK$17.8 million); and

the Company introduced a new loan guarantee
product with 80% guarantee coverage under the
existing SME Financing Guarantee Scheme (SFGS) in
May 2012 at a concessionary guarantee fee rate and
up to a total loan guarantee commitment of HK$100
billion reimbursable by the Government with details set
out in Note 38.

Transactions with HKMC Mortgage Management Limited
(HMML), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
included the following:

(i)

(if)

the Company provided mortgage insurance cover for
mortgage loans purchased by such subsidiary in the
course of its ordinary business; and

the Company as scheme operator, HMML and various
participating banks as loan originators entered into
loan participation agreements under the Microfinance
Scheme pursuant to which HMML would fund all or
part of the microfinance loans as funding vehicle for
the Company.

Transactions with the structured entities included the
guarantee cover provided by the Company for the MBS
issued by the structured entities and there was no
outstanding balance as at 31 December 2013 (2012: HK$215
million) (Note 31).
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Ft-A=+—B5HE<ATRKR
IVEREZLY Y Ul NE

The balances of the amounts due to and from the relevant
related parties as at 31 December are as follows:

R A FIFUR
(HE237005£25)

[UERE GV b
E o 57 (W 28)
s (E28)

BB S ER
(RHE3.2.(a))
BB

R&H NG|
The Group The Company
B B WEAT £HMAT
The Government The Government Subsidiaries Structured entities
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
TR T THEx TAT TR oo THx TAT
HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
Amounts due from group
companies
(Note 23 and Note 25) - = - - 5191,190  33840,609 - 7,984
Amounts due to group companies - - - - - - 252 12,497
Other payable (Note 28) - - - - - - - 20474
Other liabilities (Note 28) 4523574 4340370 4,523,574 4,340,370 - = - =
Financial guarantees under the
MBS Programme (Note 3.2.(a) - = - = - = - 214,742
Total risk-in-force - - - - 572,832 486,252 - -

(b) FEEEEAR

T+ oB
*=
== &k
DX

R

RERETEEBRREARNFHESE

EERNEERRERBNA KRR
)~ FEE BRI AR SR L S5 RO A
T BREZRSREEAR -

(b) Key management personnel

Key management are those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the Group, directly or indirectly, including
directors and senior officers.

Key management personnel compensation for the year
comprised:

AEH R AN T
The Group and the Company

2013
TR
HK$'000

2012
T
HK$'000

FekEMmEHE AR Salaries and other short-term
employee benefits 16,237 17,439
B EREA Post-employment benefits 1,356 1,217
17,593 18,656

222
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35. JkiE 35. Commitments

(a) #XF (a) Capital
AEF KA FE
The Group and the Company
2013 2012
FHExT T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
EHERITS Authorised and contracted for 1,642 3,744
EHRUEERITS Authorised but not contracted for 13,311 34,011
14,953 37,755
(b) EEFHY (b) Operating lease
TERAR  RETADFHNOLER Total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
N B R R &K £ R B3 operating lease at the end of the reporting period are
DT - analysed as follows:
REH KAT
The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
FTHET FHET TEx FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
IAEY Office premises
— T —% — not later than one year 29,465 20,087 29,218 19,847

— T —FZF%FTHF — later than one year
and not later than

five years 53,065 12,928 52,572 12,210

82,530 33,015 81,790 32,057
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36. {RIBIRFEAL S

F_BE—=F+"A=+—H ' AEHAX
NEFAR BN N 1442 T (ZF——4F :
166127870) * R 24ZB L (=ZF——F :
28127 7T) B M B IR A 71K B4R
B o i ASEE N B T7AE R 1201258 7T
(=T ——4%F : 138{ZBT) N -

F12012 BT (ZF—=4 : 138128 7T) i
AERAABHNEERIAEF - 1228 7T
—TE——F 18ZB L) NRIRRFNE
R BB iz AR R BRE AL HE
&5 8] 2 B9 XS VBT - T AR = E AR
N - BIEE XS A XS FI R 8
MR R XURS

EHRATE

SRR B E R IR F R R S0E S AR
7T RHITRALLE - ARIE A RILSFM T RIA
ERITBIERIEERIZIBILS ° ILF
THEENRBEEAG T EREMAF]
(RBERZIBIERT S - WARBENE
A BER —HEAZIBIE S HR N R E LY
B - ITEIZFENC R A ~rOHIR S o

37.

36.

37.

Mortgage insurance business

As 31 December 2013, the total risk-in-force of the Group was
approximately HK$14.4 billion (2012: HK$16.6 billion) of which
HK$2.4 billion (2012: HK$2.8 billion) was ceded to the approved
reinsurers and the balance of HK$12 billion (2012: HK$13.8 billion)
was retained by the Group.

Out of the HK$12 billion (2012: HK$13.8 billion) of risk-in-force
retained by the Group, the excess loss of HK$1.2 billion (2012:
HK$1.8 billion) of risk-in-force was hedged through the use of
excess-0f-l0ss reinsurance arrangement to reinsure the middle
layer risk positions, and the Group retained a portion of the total
risk comprising the first-loss and remote risk portions.

Pledged assets

Structured entities charged their assets as securities or otherwise
transferred by way of security for issuing guaranteed or non-
guaranteed MBS in accordance with the provisions under the
relevant securitisation programmes. The security trustee appointed
under the relevant securitisation programmes will enforce the
securities over the relevant pledged assets when the relevant
structured entity (and, in the case of guaranteed MBS, the
Company as guarantor) defaults in payment under any series of
MBS or otherwise on the occurrence of an event of default in
respect of any series of MBS.

&M
The Group

2013
FTERT
HK$'000

2012
THAT
HK$'000

[k Assets pledged
R TI A E ()£ 28) Mortgage portfolio (Note 28) - 210,474
BHRARA SR Secured liabilities
B RITHRBIE A (Mi)E31) Mortgage-backed securities issued
(Note 31) - 214,672

ERFRBANEARBRD K ILIZBER
HeRERRFE25EHET [FTRA
BE ] MBI R (FHE28) »
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Mortgage portfolio pledged included the transferred mortgage
portfolio continued to be recognised as assets in “Loan portfolio,
net” to the extent of the guarantee and continuing involvement
(Note 28).
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38.

39.

g/ RS R E R TR T B9 %5 51
B

ARBE T _F-—FAARIABHNF /D
BABRITE - AMEERIEERTEKRFE A
BT 32 A5 5 52 SR AR IE A HE 21 9 1,00042 78
TT o HEH — DT AR R R R B BT FE
fR7=dh o B L TUR B 4E SR 4R 7= da A YRER
R - B EE S WA TIANEXAA
MRS RABRIT 2 - B RN R 3T
BT © 40 AT 4 X B9 B4R B8 S R PA RSP AR R
RN TR BTS2 AIERRE - RNAF]
AR RO EEHAEEBEEITX °

BREMFRINRHRER> R NAEH
MZE A RERAA R ERFAOEA - &
NREREMEBRRTIRBZMW -
EFTARBARERRBAEEEX N m
ARERIAT A R a9 KU M A 251 8
TR o Bt - %7~ meyRERRIRE
S FAEKH MR ARG - RIEM
KA Rl KA R AT R RIEE] - TREM
EAIRAENR -

B M SRER

BEERT - ET—NWFHUAELHBEARMS
Rk -

38.

39.

Special concessionary measures under the SME
Financing Guarantee Scheme

The Company introduced a new loan guarantee product with 80%
guarantee coverage under the existing SFGS in May 2012 at a
concessionary guarantee fee rate and up to a total loan guarantee
commitment of HK$100 billion reimbursable by the Government.
All guarantee fees collected under this special loan guarantee
product are set aside to meet the relevant default claims and
related out-of-pocket expenses. The remaining balance of the
guarantee fees, if any, will be returned to, and any shortfall will be
borne by, the Government. The Company is responsible for the
operation of the new product and the applicable day-to-day
operating costs.

Regarding this special loan guarantee product, there is no impact
on the consolidated income statement of the Group in respect of
guarantee fee revenue, default claims or any direct expenses
involved. Given that the Company operates only this product for
the Government, the Group considers the risk and rewards
associated with this product rest with the Government. Hence, the
risk-in-force for this product has not been included as the Group's
off-balance sheet exposures and no capital charge is required
under the Guidelines on Capital Adequacy Ratio approved by the
Financial Secretary.

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors
on 7 April 2014.
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